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VISION

To deliver innovation and quality to our customers by following a

progressive and on time approach and further the cause of a
sustainable future by promoting an eco friendly approach in all our

operations.

MISSION

To be a foremost Company receptive to the needs of

our customers, acknowledge for consistently
providing fine quality products and services by
understanding the customer’s behaviour and
preparing fully to meet the challenges of global
market and to maximize profit by making best
efforts in production planning, quality of products and

making strategies.
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NOT

F37TH NUA ERAL MEETING
IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

MNatica & hareby given that the 271th Annusl General Maeting (AGRK) of the Sharehokders af IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

will ke held at A0S, Business Centre Ath Floor Mumtaz Haszan Rosd Near “SBPT Karachi on Tuesday October 28, 2025

al 10:1% aarm. o ransacl Uhe following business:-

The Campany hat alia arrangad the participation of shareahaldars thraugh videas facility. Tha dotailed procedura iz

mentioned |later in the notes. Following busineszes will be tranzacted during the mesting:

ORDINARY DUSINCSSLS

1. To coin 1 Minules of Uhe Last Edlia Ofdindiy General Meeting held on Mondsy Acgust 11, 2025

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company Tor the year ended lune 30, 2025,
together with the reports of the directors and auditors

3. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and Tix thair e meneratiom.

4. Ay other business with the permission of the Chair,

By order of the Board

Karachi: LI T IS 0 DV B P
Septambar 30, 2025 Campany Sacratary
Pt

1. Online Participation in the Annual General Mesting
In order to faciitate and for the safety and weli-being of the sharehoiders. the Company in addition to convening a
physlcal masting, hs: ales arrenged the attendancs of the shara holders virtuslly through vides link facllity. The
sharahcld ers whe are inleresied i allending Lhe AGM proceedings online may send the below infoomation slong
with the wvalid copy of both zides of CHIC with the subject "Registration for Ideal Spinning Millz Limited AGM™ at
riadeamiPldealim. com Tor thelr apgalntéd prowy’s veriflcation. Such infoarmation should ba cent From thalr duly
registeread valid amail 1D for the registration purposes latest by October 24, 3025

Shareholder’s Name Folio f CODC No Mo, of shares helo CINIC Mo, Call No. Registered Email 1D

A detaliad procsdurs shall be communicated through the amall directly to the sharsholdars who have provided thair
walid emall IDs and the same shall be placed at the Company’s website: htips/feww. idealsm.com in the investor
relations section.
Tha sharaholders can alis provide thelr commanisfiugges thaene for the agenda Raoe of the AGM &t the amall addrass
rimce eyl ide sl s, corme.
Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGRM through video link or by consalidating their attendance
Through proxies,
F. Closwure of Share Transfer Boohks
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 18, 2025 to October 28, 2025 [(both days
inclusive). Mo transfer will be sccepted for registration durng this period. Transfers received at Share Registrar Office
MfE LY Hegistrar Servioes (vt} LEd, 1/7th Floor Sema irade lower—n, LL Chandrgar Bodad Barschi /9000 @t the oloss of
business on October 17, 2025, will be treated in time to attend and vote at the mesting.
A, For attending the NWMesting
In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders andfor the persons whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as: per the Regulations. shall authenticate their identity by
shawing ariginal Camputanzad Naticonal ldamtity Cards (CNIC) ar origins patspart at tha tima of attending the maeting.
In case of a corporate @ntity, The Board of Directoers” Resolution/Power of ATTorney with The specimen signature of The
mmrminee alall e prodoced (1 i e ant been provided sarliec) ot the Hime of attending the mesting

4. Prowy

A emibeer entitled to attend and vobte at this General PMaosting iz entitlecd te sppaint a Prosy e attend, speak and vots
in his place at the meesting. Instrument appointing a prosy must be deposited at the registered office of the Comparny
At least forty-might howrs before the time of the meeting.

To faciinats idad . tha &
the Central Depository Company (CDC) or his Prowy showld authenticate his identity by showing his onginal CR6EC o
arginal passport at the time of attending the meeting. along with the Participant’'s ldentity Number and Shareholder's
aceount numbar allocated by the Cantral Depositary Company.

atban tar tha Fight o attend thae Annusl Ganeral Maal

ahalder whoda haldings ard on

Im case of corporate entity, the Bosrd of Directors’ Resolutionf/Power of sattormney with apecimen signature of the
namines shall be produced at the time ol the mesting

5. Motice to Sharcholders who have not provided their CTHIC
The lndividaal Memihers who have ol yef suhmiifed phatacnpy af thale valld Coampiites] fed Natinnal Identity Card
(M) to the CompanyfShare Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the sarilest directly to Company’s
Share Begistrar, MSs F.D Regisirar Services [Pvt] Ltd, In case of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CRIC, the Company
wowld be consgtralned under section 243(3) of the Campanies Act. 2007, 1o withhold dividend (IF any)l of such
shareholders,

. Deposit of Physical Shares in ODC Acomiunt.

Az per Sectiom 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company is required o replace its physical
ahares with Bosk-sntiy farm,. Therelors, the asbiarslaldeis having physical ahaies reguested 1o convert the ahares
it book enkry.

7. Placement of Financial Statements on Website
Puirkiiant Ta The Aaatlficatian af tha SFOPF (SRO GR4(1/2014) datac: 100k Lily 2014 the fhnandlal Statemanta af tha
Company have been placed on Company’s website at wweidealam.com

. Unclsimed ividends And Share Cartilicates:
Shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some onclaimedy oncollected
funpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collact their dividends/shares are adyised to contact
our Share Registrar M/s. FD Ragistrar Services (Pvi) Ltd 17th Floorn Saima Trade Tower-A, Ll Chundrigar Road, Karachi
during working howurs, Ph: 092-21-32271905 Email; fdregistrari@yabhoo.com to collectfenguire sbhout their
unelaimed dividend ar shares, I any

9. Prohibition of Distribution of Gifts
Considering 5,.1.0.4532(1)20253 DATED 17" March 2025, No gifts will be distributed o the shareholders of the
Company atl the General Meeting being probibited under Saction 185 of At 2017,

10. Changes of Address
Tho Shoaroholdors are roguostod to intimato any chonpos in thoir oddrosscs to tho Shoro Rogistrar, M/ F.D Rogistror
Services [Pwet] Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The Board has diligently prepared and approved the Directors’ Report, ensuring its
inclusion with the Company's quarterly and annual financial statements. This report has
been developed in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

In line with its responsibilities, the Board has overseen the recruitment, evaluation, and
compensation of key executives, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit. The Board has
also ensured that its members receive timely and adequate information, keeping them
well-informed of developments between meetings.

The Board has exercised its authority strictly within the powers prescribed by relevant
laws and regulations, demonsirating a consistent commitment to compliance in all
decisions and actions. Essential agendas and supporting documents were circulated in
advance of Board and Committee meetings to facilitate thorough review and deliberation.
Mon-executive and independent directors continued to play an equal and integral role in
all significant Board decisions.

Despite wvarious challenges, the Company adopted effective cost management
strategies, leading to a reduction in distribution, administrative, and financial expenses.
As a result, the loss before tax decreased to Rs. 274.752 million, compared to Rs.
356.929 million in the corresponding period of the previous year. However, after
incorporating the deferred tax adjustment, the Company reported an after-tax loss of Rs.
423.559 million, as against a loss of Rs. 322.240 million in the same period last year.

Recognizing the importance of addressing these challenges, the Company has
proactively undertaken measures to mitigate their impact. The management team
continues to closely monitor the situation and evaluate multiple strategies aimed at
improving financial performance. We remain firmly committed to achieving sustainable
growth and creating long-term value for our stakeholders. With the right measures in
place, we are confident in our ability to successfully navigate these challenges and
emerge stronger in the future.

Hutg Sagceo

Muhammad Saeed
Chairman
Faisalabad
September 30, 2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The directors of ldeal Spinning Mills Limited feel pleasure to present 37" Annual Report
accompanied by the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the year ended June 30,
2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW:

We are delighted to present our 2025 business review,

Global economic volatility, coupled with escalating costs of raw materials and labor, has
significantly undermined the competitiveness of Pakistan's textile industry. The situation is
further aggravated by recurring energy shortages and power outages, which continue to
disrupt production. Adding to these difficulties is the intense competition from regional rivals
such as Bangladesh, India, and Vietnam, who are rapidly expanding their textile sectors
with attractive pricing and superior product quality. Collectively, these factors pose a
serious threat 1o Pakistan's market share in the global textile arena

To secure the IMF bailout, the government was required to increase electricity and fuel
tariffs, which in turn constrained overall economic activity. As a result, our management
encountered multiple challenges, including escalating raw material and energy prices, a
mandated rise in minimum wages, and continued strain on yarn prices due to the import of
cheaper yarn from competing countries.

Despite the challenges highlighted above, the Company implemented effective cost
management measures, resulting in reductions in distribution, administrative, and financial
expenses. Conseqguently, the loss before tax dedlined to Rs. 274.752 million, as compared
to Rs. 356.929 million in the corresponding period of the previous year. However, after
accounting for the deferred tax adjustment, the Company posted an after-tax loss of Rs.
423559 million, against a loss of _Hs. 322240 milion in the same period last year.

In the face of these challenges, we remain fully committed to our shareholders. We are
actively addressing these issues through strategic measures aimed at optimizing
operations and enhancing cost efficiency. Our core objective remains the creation of long-
term wvalue for all stakeholders. The Company's operational results are summarized as

follows:
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

30,06,2025 30.06,2024
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 3,583,528 5,559 463
COST OF SALES (3,501,445) (5,351,493)
GROSS PROFIT 82,083 207,970
DISTRIBUTION COST (78,910 (112,587)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (240,218) (302,575)
OTHER EXPENSES (5.770) (5.935)
OTHER INCOME 96,175 35,757
FINANCE COST (128,111) (179,559)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY (274,752) (356,929)
LEVY (44,750) (69.463)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (313.502) (426,332)
TAXATION (104,057) 104,152
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (423.559) (322.240)
LOSS PER SHARE-BASIC AND DILUTED (RUPEES) (42.70) (32.48)

| —

—i—
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Palkistan's cumency recenty reached of Rs. 281.85 sganst the US dollar. The nsing costof
imports and rew matenals has crested significantchalienges, leading to shortages of key
nputs.

Looking ahead. the ndustry s expecedto remam under pressure, with subdued demand n
both domestc and expornt markets, slongsde nsing energy costs. Despie these
headwinds, the Company remams resient, pursung nnovative strateges to navigate the
chalienges whie maintammng is strong commitment 1o qualty and sustainabilty.

PRIMCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES:

Rk azsessment s 8 contmuous and integral process designed to dentfy uncernaintes
that may threa®enthe achevement of the Company's objectives. If not addressed in a
timely manner, such rsks could result in signficant losses. These uncerantes may anse
from both ntemal and extenalfaciors, The key categones of nsks that could potentally
impact the Company's operations are outined below;

« Strategic Risks: These mvolve uncetaintes and untapped opporuntes related to
the Company's strategic objectves. Strateg.c nsks are & pnmary concem for the
Bosrd of Diectors as they affect the overall busness rather than specfic unts.

« CommercialRisks: Theserelateto potential losses stemmng frominterachons wih
trading partners orthe dynamcs of the markets in which the Company operates.

+ Operational Risks: These anse from intemal factors such as procedursl
mefficiences, personnel chalienges, or system failures.

« Financial Risks: This broad category covers nsks associated with financing,
bqudty, profiabilty. and credd exposure.

The Company maimans continuo us vigilance and adopts proactve mitsg shion me asures Lo
minimze these nsks, thereby safeguarding stakeholder mterests and ensunng the
successful achevement of ds obpectves.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:

The Company s commiied to uphoiding the highest standards of Heafth, Safety, and
Environment (HSE) to ensure sustamable performance. In Iime with this commament,
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) have been promptly mplemented to address
environmental challenges, with a parcular focus on combating chmate change byreducing
greenhouse gas emissons, notably carbon divode (CO:) and methane. Stnet adherence o
these SOPs refiects the Company's dedcaton to HSE excelience and long-term
sustsmability

AT IAL R ILITY:

The Company acknowledges s corporate social responsibilty (CSR) 1o the community and
remains commanied 10 supporting

INT T YSTEM:

The Board of Directors acknowkedges its crtcal responsbilty n overseeing the Company's
internal control system and ensures ds ongong effectveness through robust
implementation and regular montonng

The Company has estabished a comprehenswve miemal control framework that
encompasses transparent structures, clearly defined authorty mts, and well-assigned
responsibites, all supported by detaied pobcwes and procedures. Ths framework s
designedtio drve operational efficency, safeguard Company assets. ensure complance
with apphcable laws and regulations, and delwver reliable financsal reporting.
DIVIDEND POLICY

In sccordance with regulstory requements, the Board has adopied a transparent Dridend

1

—i—
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Policy. balanangthe need for shareholder retums with reinvestment for long-term growth
For the year under review. no dividend has been recommended due to losses

Board Evaluation

In compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Govemance) Regulations.
2019 the Board conducted its annual performance evaluation through a structured self-
assessment process The resulis confimed that the Board has been effective in
discharging its responsibilities, while also highhghting areas for further improvement in
long-term strategy and govemance

AT wills

The company has diligently adhered o all stipulations outlined in the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance ) Regulations, 2019, A comprehensive statement confirming this compliance
is attached herewith in this annual report.

EUTURE OUTLOOK:

The Company anticipates a positive outlook for its financial performance in the coming
year, supported by substantial investments in the modemization and replacement of
machinery These strategic intiatives are expected to deliver long-term benefits and
strengthen operational efficiency. In addition, the Company is focused on enhancing its
self-energy generation capabilities 10 further reduce production costs

We remain confident that contnued govemment support for the textile sector will reinforce
the growth potential of exporting industries, thereby contnbuting to both the Company 's
progress and the country’s economic development

BOARD COMPO REMUN TION AND MEETI .

k AT u alLfaly

In line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. the Company encourages
representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.

The Board's composition and detail of the directors and meetings attended is as under:

Composition of the Board:

Category Male Female Total
Executive Diractor 2 - 2
Non-Executive Director 3 1 4
Independent Director 2 - 2
Total 7 1 8
Detail of the directors and meetings atiended:
Name of Directors Designation Attendance
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Chairman (Mon-Executive Director) 4
Mr. Amjad Saeed Chief Executive Officer 4
Mr. Omer Saeed Executive Director 4
Mrs. Rubina Amjad (Female) Mon-Executive Director 4
Mr Ahsan Saeed MNon-Executive Director 4
Mr.Khizer Saeed MNon-Executive Director 4
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Independent Director 4
Mr. Rizwan-ul-Hassan Independent Director 4
1
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Qur company maintains a well-defined policy andtransparent procedures for the remuneration of its
Directors, aligningwith the Companies Act, 2017, and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019,

For comprehensive details on the remuneration, including Director Fees for atending board
meetings, and compensation forthe Chief Executive Officer, please referto Note 34 in the financial
statements

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
The Directors hereby affirm the Chairman’s review report on the company’s performance
OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS:

All pending payments are of a routine and negligible nature.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUNDS:

The Company maintains an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees, as indicated in the
financial statements

AUDITORS:
The current auditors, M/S RIAZ AHMAD & CO. Charered Accountants, who are eligible, have

expressed their willingness for re-appointment for the year 2025-2026. in line with the
recommendation of the audit committee.

PATERN OF SHAREHOLDING:
The pattern of shareholding as of June 30, 2025, is included in the annex.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All dealings with related parties are conductedon an arm's length basis withinthe normal course of
business and are in full conformity with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2017. Pricing
is established in accordance with the comparable uncontrolled price method andthe Companyis in
strict compliance with the best practices intransfer pricing as stipulated in the listing regulations of
the Pakistan Stock Exchanges (PSX)

BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has established following
committees and their composition is as under:

A. Audit Committee:
Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

B. .
Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

—
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Name Designation
Mr. Omer Saeed Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

D. Risk Mana nt m
Name Designation
Mr_ Ahsan Saeed Chairman
Mr. Omer Saeed Member
Mr.Khizer Saeed Member

E. Sustainability Committee:
Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Board acknowledges the pivotal role that well-structured corporate governance practices play
in fostering accountability. We are steadfast in our commitment to upholding elevated corporate
governance standards to preserve and enhance stakeholder value. The Board has demonstrated
diligence and has made significant conftributions to steer the Company in its strategic endeavors,
Our Company maintains a robust relaionship with the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan andthe Pakistan Stock Exchange. ensuringunwavering compliance with the principles of
Good Corporate Governance in both word and deed. A comprehensive statement affirming our
adherence to the best practices of Corporate Governance is provided in the annex.

TE AND FI R TING F :

In accordance with the regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange and as mandated by the
Companies Act, 2017, we are pleased to affirm the following

1. The financial statements, meticulously prepared by our management, accurately reflect the
Company’s financial position. operating results, cash flows, and changes in equity

2. Properly maintained books of accounts are in place for the Company

3. 'We have consistently applied appropriate accounting policies, and our accounting estimates
are grounded in reasonable and prudent judgment.

4 The preparation of financial statements adheres to the International Financial Reporting
Standards, as relevantin Pakistan. Ourinternal control system is well-structured effectively
implemented, and continually monitored.

5. There is no uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

6. ‘We have maintained alignment with the bestpractices of corporate governance, as outlined
in the listing regulations, with no significant deviations

7. Asummarized form of key operational andfinancial data fromthe past six years is provided
in the annex.

| ——
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD;

Appropriations:

In view of the financial performance dunngthe year. which resulted in a loss. the Board of
Directors has considered it inadwsable to recommend a cash dividend for approval at the

Annual General Meeting. The Board has instead resclvedto pnontize the prudent allocation

of resources towards addressing current challenges. strengthening the Company’s financial
position, and ensunng long-term sustainability.

Other events:

Subsequent to the reporting period. significant developments have taken place. The
management. in view of the continued heavy losses. sought shareholders’ approval
through an Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on August 11, 2025, for the
closure of the Company's spinning operations and the sale of its production machinery
The Company is closely assessingthe potential implications of this measure and will take
appropnate actions to mitigate its impact.

A detailed evaluation and disclosure of these events, in line with regulatory requirements.
will be presented in the upcoming report to ensure full transparency.

The Company remains firmly committed to delivering sustainable growth and creating long-
term value for its stakeholders With the right strategies and measures in place, we are
confident in our ability to navigate these challenges and emerge stronger.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places onrecordits appreciation for loyalty and devofion to work. by staff and workers
forthe company The relationship between management and workers remained véry cordial and we
hope that these will further improve in the years to come.

The Board extends its gratitlude for the unwavering loyaly and dedication displayed by our staff and
workers. The relationship between the management and our workforce has been exceptionally
harmonious. and we anticipate further enhancements in the years ahead.

On Behalf of the Board

il

Amjad Saeed Omer Saeed
Chief Executive Officer Director

September 30, 2025
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Statement of Compliance
With Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -
1. The total number of directors is eight as per the following:

a. Male: Seven
b. Female: One

2. The composition of the board is as follows:

Category Name
a. Independent directors Mr. Muhammad Azhar
Mr. Rizwan-Ul- Hassan
b. MNon-executive directors Mr. Muhammad Saeed

Mr. Ahsan Saesed
Mr. Khizer Saeed

c. Executive directors Mr. Amjad Saeed
Mr. Omer Saeed
d. Female director Mrs. Rubina Amjad

Board of Directors is of the view that considering the volume of business, independent
directors should not be more than two as required by these regulations. Hence, the
fraction of independent directors has not been rounded up.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company.

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act 2017 “the Act” and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by
a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board has already arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Name Category

Mr. Omer Saeed Executive Director

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Non-Executive Director
|
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Mr. Ahsan Saesed MNon-Executive Director
Mr. Khizer Saeed Non-Executive Director

Moreover, our following two directors meet the exemption criteria of minimum 14 years
of education and 15 years of experience on the boards of listed companies, hence are
exempt from Directors’ Training Program:

Mr. Muhammad Saeed MNon-Executive Director
Mr. Amjad Saeed Executive Director

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and
head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations .

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endors ed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. -
a. Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
b. HR and Remuneration Committes

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member
. Nomination Committee

Mr. Omer Saeed Chairman

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

d. Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Chairman
Mr. Omer Saeed Member
Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

e. Sustainability Committes

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees during the financial year ended
June 30, 2025, were as per following:
a. Audit Committee: Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committee: Annually
MNomination Committee: Annually
Risk Management Committee: Annually
Sustainability Committee - Annually

L= N
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15. The Board has set up an effective intemal audit function who is considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confimed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Instiute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Awdit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with Intemational Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of intermal audit,
company secretary or director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or amy
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with; and

19. Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,
27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

::}'_ Reguirement Explanation of Non-Compliance “:ﬂ“'“:;'"
Directors’ Training
Il is encouraged thal by 30 June
2022, all direclors on the Board have
acquired the prescribed cerlificalion | ¢ e e ngent director Mr. Muhammad

1 ke any. d"_Ed_Dr training pmg-:nm Azhar arlTMr. Rizwan-ul-Hassan did nol
offered by nshlw. h‘-’al or foreign, | ayend the direclor's Iraining program due 18(1)
that mE_Et_IhE crileria Epe-mﬁa:! by the lo light schedule. Howaver, company is
Commission and approved by iL amanging direclors’ Iraining program as

early as possible.
Female Executive’s Training The Company will arrange direclors’
Companies are encouraged o | Imining program for ils female execulive
amange lraining for al leasl one | innext financial year.

2 | female execulive every year under 19(3){i)
the Direclors” Training Program from
year July 2020.

Training of Head of Department
Al leasl one head of depariment

3 evary year is required o be irmined | The Company will organize the training of 19(3)ii)
under the Direclor’'s Training Program | ils one head of depariment each year
from July 2022. from nexl nancial year.

Hriy \é};m!

Signatures Signatures
MUHAMMAD SAEED OMER SAEED
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

30 September 2025

@
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the endosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2025 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to ingquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficdient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this reguirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2025.

Lo Abrindt 2
W.ELHAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Faisalabad

Date: 30 September, 2025.
UDIN: CR202510184KGzNB%axS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed finandal statements of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the loss, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1
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Following are the key audit matters:

IdealGroup

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our
No. audit
1. | Inventory existence and
valuation
Inventories as at 30 June 2025 D”f pmced_ureg over existence: and val_ua’_(inn
. of inventories included, but were not limited
amounting to Rupees 380.320 5
glllllclz?r?sr' break up of whidh 5 a5 + To test the quantity of inventories at all
E locations, we assessed the
corresponding inventory observation
- Stores, spare parts and instructions and  participated  in
loose tools of Rupees : p
97.109 million inventory counts on sites. Based on
samples, we performed test counts and
- Stock-intrade of Rupees compared the quantities counted by us
g with the results of the counts of the
283.211 million
management.
Inventories are stated at lower of « For a sample of inventory items, re-
cost and net realizable value. performed the weighted average cost
calculation and compared the weighted
We identified existence and average cost appearing on valuation
valuation of inventories as a key sheets,
audit matter due to their size, :
representing 14.87% of the total « On a sample basis, we tested the net
assets of the Company as at 30 realizable value of inventory items to
June 2025, and the judgment recent selling prices and re-performed
involved in valuation. the l:a_lculatlon of the inventory write
down, if any.
For  further  information  on « In the context of our testing of the
inventories, refer to the following: calculation, we analyzed individual cost
o components and traced them back to
- Summary of significant the corresponding underlying
accounting policies, documents.
Inventories (Note 2.7 to
the financial statements). « We also made inquiries from
management, including those outside
- Stores, spare parts and of the finance function, and considered
loose tools (Note 15) and the results of our testing above to
Stock-in-trade (Note 16) determine whether any specific write
to the financial downs were required.
el « We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of the
accounting policies and related notes to
the finanaal statements.
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Sr.

No.

Key audit matters

audit

IdealGroup

How the matters were addressed in our

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 3,583.528 million

for the year ended 30 June 2025.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an
inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Revenue from contracts

with customers (Note
2.19 to the financal
statements).

- Revenue from contracts
with customers (Note 23
to the financial
statements).

to:

Our procedures induded, but were not limited

We obtained an understanding of the

process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating

effectiveness of key intermal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

We assessed whether the accounting
polices for revenue recognition
complies with the requirements of IFRS
15 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'.

We also considered the appropriateness
of disclosures in the financal
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

1
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance condusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s finandial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

1
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

|
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII

of 1980).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Liagat
Ali Panwar.
ﬁ o d & 2.
ILIA?j—IHAD &COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Faisalabad

Date: 30 September, 2025.
UDIN: AR202510184pye6H7uP0
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
NOTE 2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 23 3,583,528 5,559,463
COST OF SALES 24 (3,501,445) (5,351,493)
GROSS PROFIT 82,083 207,970
DISTRIBUTION COST 25 (78,910) (112,587)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 26 (240,219) (302,575)
OTHER EXPENSES 27 (5,770) (5,935)
OTHER INCOME 28 96,175 35,757
FINANCE COST 29 (128,111) (179,559)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION AND LEVY (274,752) (356,929)
LEVY 30 (44,750) (69,463)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (319,502) (426,392)
TAXATION 31 (104,057) 104,152
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (423,559) (322,240)

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 32 (42.70) (32.48)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these finandal statements.

Aﬁzﬂj OMER SAEED MUHAM KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (423,559) (322,240)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be redassified subsequenty to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of staff retirement gratuity 6.3 217 110
Deferred income tax related to remeasurements 14.1.1 (63) (32)
154 78
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land - 124,698
154 124,776
Ttems that may be redassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year -
net of deferred income tax 154 124,776
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (423,405) (197,464)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Aﬁzﬂj OMER SAEED MUHAM KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 33

Finance cost paid

Income tax and levy paid

Staff retirement gratuity paid b
Net decrease in long term loans

Net increase in long term deposits and prepayments

MNet cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term finandng

Dividend paid

Acquisition of short term borrowings - net
Net cash from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Net foreign exchange difference on translating cash
and bank balances

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 22

The annexed notes form an integral part of these finandial statements.

il

OMER SAEED
DIRECTOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2025

IdealGroup

2024

{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

146,832 270,763
(135,043)  (189,092)
(64,335) (61,300)
(12,607) (78,205)
- 47
(6,797) (215)
(71,950) (58,002)
(32,825) (61,804)
42,500 8,892
9,675 (52,912)
(105,000} (35,000)
(3) (202)
112,645 171,490
7,642 136,288
(54,633) 25,374
96,362 70,988
(5) -
41,724 96,362

MUHAM KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2025

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 08 June 1989 under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Maw Companies Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited o 30 September 1991,
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn, choth and hosiery products. The Company's registered
offios is stuated at Room No. 404-405, 4th Floor, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi.

Geographical location and addresces of all business unlts of the Company, except for the reglstered office given above are as

felbowis:

Officas and manufa cturing units Addrass

Head Cffice 1088, Jall Road, Faisalabad

Spanning and Weaving Units 32-KM Sheikhupura Road, Tehsil Jaranwala, District Faisalabad

Socks Unit 5-KM Cantt. Road, Shorkat City

Regicnal Office 506-D, 5th Aloor, City Tower, 6-K, Main Boulevard, Gulberg-11, Lahore

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMAT ION

The material sccounting policy Information applied in the preparation of these financal statements are set out below. Thess
polices have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated,

2.1 Basis of praparation

a) Statamant of complianca

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting stendards s applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

= Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ([ASB) &s notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

\Where provisions of and diredives issued wnder the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the TFRSs, the provisions of and diredives
|sswed under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

These financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost comvention, ecepl as otherwise stated in the respective
acoounting policies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgmants

The preparation of these financial statements in oonformity with the approved accounbing and reporting standards requires
management o make judgements, estimates and assumpticns that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, Rabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these astimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimaies are recognised in
the periods in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected, The areas where various assumptions and
estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgments were exercisad in application of accounting
polides are as follows:

Useful livas, patterns of aconomic benalits and impairment

The estimate for revalued amount of freehald land is based on valustion performed by external professional valuer. Further, the
Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis, Estimates with respect to residual values and
useful |ives and pattern of Aow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Any change in
the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and eguipment along
with intanglble assets with a comesponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.

Recovery of deferrad income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Company considers It is probable that
future t=xable amounts will be available to ublize those temporary differences and losses.

1
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Provisions

A the actual outflows can differ from estimabtes made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations,
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years In the future, the carylng amounts of provisions ang reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Ay adjustrments 1o the amount of previously recognized
provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset,

Inventories

Inventory write-dawn is based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of similar nature. It could
change significantly as & result of changes in market conditions. A review is made an each reporting date on inveniories for excess
inventories, obsolescence and decline in net realizable value and an allowance s recorded against the imventary balances for such
dad ines,

Incomae tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and |evy currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the
current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past

Contingancies

The Compary reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the judgment and the advice
of the legal advisars for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disdesure or provision is made. The actual oubcome of these
litigations and daims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilites recognized at the statement of financial position
date.

&llowance for expected credit losses

The allowanoe for expected credit losses assescment reguires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifeime
expected credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual creclit loss in past years.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is
cansidered bo be the point of defivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the ime that the customer oblains
contral of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note 6.4 to the financial statements for determination of present
value of staff retirement gratuity. Any change in these assumptions in future years might affect the current and remessurement
gains and losses in those years,

d) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to
the Company

Following amendmeni= to published approved accounbing standards are mandstory for the Company’s accounting  periods
baginning an or after 01 July 2024:

= Amendments to [45 | 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ — Classification of liabilities as current or non-current;
= Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases’ — Lease lisbility in a sale and leaseback transaction;
= Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentstion of Finand al Statements’ - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants; and

= Amendments to TAS 7 “Statement of Cash Fowes” and IFRS 7 “Fimancial Imstruments: Disdosures” — Supplier finance
arrangements,

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standands did not have any |mpact on the amounts recognized In prior
penad and are not expected to significantly affect the current or fubure periads.

e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to
the Company

There are amendmeants b published sendards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024 but

are considered not to be rédevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefiore
not detalled in these finandal statements,

1

—i—




IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Annual report 2024-25 @)

(3] Standard, amendments and |mprovements to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
but relevant to the Company

Fellowing standard, amendments and improvements to exigting standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Company's accounting periods beginning on ar afber 01 July 2025 or later pericds

Classification and Measurements of Anandal Instruments {Amendments to IFRS 7 Financlal Instrements: Disdosures’ and IFRS 9
'Financial Instruments') effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2026. Thess amendments address mathers
identified during the past - implementation review of the dassification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9.

Lack of Exchangeability [Amendments to IA5S 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'), The amendments contain
guidarnce o spedfy when a currency |s exchangeable and how to determine the exchange rabe when It [s nok The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning an or after 01 January 2025.

IFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disdosure in Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2027)
with & fecus on updates o the statement of profit oF lois, The objective of IFAS 18 | %o set out reguiremenits for the preientation
and disclosure of information in general purpose financal staternents o help ensure they provide relevant information that
faithfully represents an entity's assets, ||abilibes, squity, Income and expenses, The hey concepts introduced in [FRS 18 relate to:
the structure of the stabement of profit or loss; reguired disdoswres in the finandal statements for certain profit or loss
performance messures that are reported outsde an entity's financal statements (that |s, management-cefined performance
measures); and enhanced prindples on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements and notes
in general. IFRS 18 will replace 1AS 1; many of the other existing principles in [AS 1| are retained, with limited changes. [FRS 18
will nat impact the recognition or measuremeant of ibems in the Anandal statements, but it might charge what an entity reports as
Its ‘operating profit or loss’,

IFRS 51 'General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Informabion’. IFRS S1 sets out overall
requirements for suskalnablllby-relabed financlal disclosures with the abjectve to requine an entity to disdose information about its
susszai nability-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reports in making
decisions relating to providing resowrces o the entity.

IFRS 52 "Climate-related Disclosures’. IFRS 52 sets out the requirements for [dentifying, measuring and discloging infermation
about cimate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reports In making
decisions relating to providing resouwrces to the entity.

Ag per the current scenarla, the Compary will fall in Phase-II1 of the oiterla a8 per the order from Securities and Bxchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 31 December 2024, Therefore the effective date of these bwo sustainability standards for the
Compary is for annual reparting periods beginning on or after 01 Juby 2027,

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASE) has published 'Annual Improvements to [FRS Accounting Standards —
Velume L1', The amendments are effedtive for anmual reporting periods beginning on or after 0L Jenuary 2026, It contmins
amendments to following standards relevant to the Compamy, as result of the IA58's annual improvements project:

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Dischosures;
* IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and
* IAS 7 Stabement of Cash Alows.

The abowve standard, amendments and improvements are likely 9 have no significant impact on the finandal satements.

gl Standards, amendments and improvements to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effactiva and not considered relavant to the Company

There are other standards, amendments and improvements ko published standards that are mandatory for acoounting perieds
beginning on or after 01 July 2025 but are considerad nat o be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements and are therefore not detalled in these financial statements,

2 Proparty, plant, aquipmant and dapreciation

Property, plant and squipment excospt fresncld land and capital work-in-progress are stated at oost less accumulstsd depreciation
and any identified impairment loss. Freshold land is stabed at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss, while capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. AN expenditure connectsd with spedfic assets incumed
during installation and construction periad are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to operating fixed
assets as and when these are available for use. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining
to the construction | erection period of qualifying assets and cother directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working
condition.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluabon of freshold land are recoonized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders’ squity, To the extent that increase reverses a decreass previously recognized in
the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decresses that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognizad in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus atiributable
e the asset; all other decreases are charged 1o the statement of profit or lass.
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Valuations are perfarmed frequently enough to ensure that the far value of the revalued asset does not differ materially from its
Camying amaunt,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
meatured rellably. Al other repair and maintenance costs ane charged to the statement of profit o loss during the vear in which
these are incurred,

Depraciation

Ciepreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method
50 a8 to write off the cost [ depredable amount of the assets over thelr estimated ussful lives at the rates given in Nate 11.1. The
Company charges the depreciation on additions from the month when the asset is available for use and on deletions upto the
month preceding the month of disposal. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management at each
financial yvear-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An e of property, plant and aguipment is de-recognired upon disposal or when no future economic bansfits ane expeched fram
its wse or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is induded in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is de-recognized,

2.3 Intangible assats

Compaiber softwares acquired by the Company are stabed at cost less accumdlated amortization and any identified impairment losi.
The amortization is made applying the strasght line method at the rates stated in Note 12 to these finandal staterments,

24 Impairment of nen-financial assets

Assete that have an indefinite ussful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in droumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which assst's
carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount doss not excesd the carrying amount that would have besn determined, net of cdepreciation or amortization, if
Impairment losses had not been recognized. An impalrment kots o reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
prafit or boss,

1.5 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value Discount or premium on issuance of shares is
separately reported in statement of changes in equity. Transadtion costs directly attributable to the issuance of shares ane shown in
eguity as a deduction, net of tax.

2.6 Borrowing cost
Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term financing are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective

qualifying assets acquired out of the procesds of such long-term financing, All other interest, mark-up and cther charges are
recoghized n staterment of prafit or loss

2.7 Inventorias

Inventories, except for stock In transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined as
follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered cbsolete are
carried at nil value, Items in transit are valued at oost comiprising invoios amount plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Cost aof raw materials, wark-in-procsess and finished goods is detarmined a= follows:

(i} For raw materials: Weighted average cost.
(i1} For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost induding
a portion of praduction overheads.

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon, Waste stock s valeed at net
realizable value.

MNet realizable value signifies the sstimated selling price in the ardinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and
estimated oosts necessary to make a sale.
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28 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cagh squivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accourts and other shart term
highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
chamges in values.

29 Staff retirement benafit

The Company operates defined benefit plan - urfunded gratulty schame for its permanent emplovess, who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan are determined
throwgh sctusrial valustion using the Prajected Unit Credit Mathod, The method invalves making sssumptions about discaunt
rates, fubure salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these benefits, such estimates are subject to
cErtein uncertainties, Remesasuremants changss which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recogmized in other comprahensive
income in the periad in which these arise.

210 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligations and a reliable
estimate of the amount can beé made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate,
211 Taxation and levy

Currant

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determinad in sccordance with the prevalling law for tastion
af Income. The charge for current tax s caloulated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the
year, if enached. Final texes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any excess over the amount designated as
provision for current tax ane charged as |evy In statement of profit or loss, The charge for current tax and levy also indudes

adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax and levy made in previous years arising from assessments framed
during the year for sudh years.

Dalerrad

Deferred tax |5 sccounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the
carmying amaount of assets and liabilibes in the financial stiatements and the corresponding t=x bases usad in the computstion of the
taxable profit, Deferred tax liabilites are generally recognized for all taxable temiporary differences and deferred tax assets to the

extent that it is probable thiat taxable profits will be available against which the dedudible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized,

Deferred tax s caloulated at the rates that are expected to apply to the peniod when the differences reverse based on tax rates that
have been snacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statemant of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is alsa recognized in other comprehensive income or directy in equity, respectively,

211 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharsholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial staterments in the period
in which it is dedared.

213  Financial instruments
iy Classification and measurement of financlal instruments
Financial assets
a) Classification
The Company classifies its inancal assets [n the following measurement categories:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
= those to be measured at amortized cost

The dassificatbion depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial asssts and the contractual terms of the
cash flaws.

For assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss, For investiments in debt
Instrumenis, this will depend on the business medd |n which the Investment is held.
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b) Measurament

At inidal recognition, the Company measures a fnandal asset at its fair value plus, In the case of a finandal asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, ransaction costs that are directly etiributable to the acquisiion of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried ot falr value through profit or loss are sxpensed in profit or loss.

Financal asssts with embedded derivakives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash fows are solely
payment of principal and interest

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories inta which the Company classifies its debt Instruments:

a)  Amortized cost

Finandal assets that are held for collection of contraciual cash fows where those cash fows represent solely payments of principal
and jnterest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from thess financial assets is induded in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arlsing on de-recognition |s recognized diredly In profit er loss and presented in
other income |/ (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.

b)  Fair valua through prafit or loss (FYTPL)

Assets that do not meet the citeria for amortized cost or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT) are
measured ot FVTPL. & gain or loss on & debt instrument that is subssquenty measured at FYTPL is recognized in profit or loss
and presented net within other income | (other expenses) in the perlod in which it arses.

Financial liabilities

Fnancial liabilities are dassified and measured ak amortized cost or at Fair Value Through Profit or Less (FVTPL). A finandal
liability is dassified as at FYTPL If it Is classiied as hdd-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as swch on Inital
recognition. Financial |iabiliies at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, induding any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or less. Other financial liabilities are subseguently measured at amortized cost wsing the effective interest
method. Inberest sxpanss and foreign exchange gains and lossss are recognized in staternent of profit or loss. Any galn or loss an
de-recognition is alse Induded in profit ar loss.

)] Impaimment of finandal assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credik Losses (ECLs) on finandal assets measured at amortized cost. The
Company measures |oss allowances at an amount equal o lifeime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
rmionkh ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the sxpeacted |ife of the finandal instrument) has not
increased significantly sinoe initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from cefault events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a finandal asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
ar effart. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informad credit assessment and induding forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the oedit risk aon a finandal asset has incressed significantdy if it is more than past due for a
reasanable pericd of time, Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the porticon of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
afier the reporting date (or a shorter pericd if the expecbed ife of the instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amotized cost are deducted from the gross crrying amount of the assels

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writhen off when the Company has no reasonable expedations of recovering of a
financial ass=t in its entirey or a portion thersof, The Company incliddually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significank recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial asssts that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to camply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether finandal assets are credit-impaired. A fnancial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash Aows of the finandal asset have ooourred.
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Ewichanon that & financial ssset is cradit-| mpalred ncdudes e following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the deblor;
= a breach of contract such as a default;
= the restruduring of a loan or advance by the Company an terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; or
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptey o other finandal recrganization.

Wiy De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
a) Financial assets
The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights fo recebve the contrachsal cash flows ina transaction in which substantially all of the rsks and rewards of ownership of the
finandal asset are transferred, or It nelther transfers nor retains substantally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does

not retain control over the transferred asset. Any [nterest in such de-recognized financlal assets that |s created ar retained by the
Company |s recognized as a separate assel or liabiliby

b} Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial Nabllity (ar a part of finandal lability) from s statement of financlal position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

[} Offsetting of financial instruments
Finandal assets and finandal liabilities ane offset and the net amount s reported in the finandal statements when there is a legal

enfarcsable right o offest and the Campany intends ather to setie on a net basls or to realize the assels and o settla the
liablities simultaneously.

2.14 Baorrowings
Finandng and borrowings are inltially recognized at far value, net of altiributable ransactiion costs Incurred and are subsegquently

etated] at amortized cost. Any difference betwesn the procesds (net of ransacion costs) and the redemplion value is recognized in
the staternent of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the sfective interest method.

1.15 Govermment grants

Grants fram the Govesnment are recognized at their falr value where there 8 & ressonable sssurance that the grant will be
recelved and the Company will comply with all afached conditicns,

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that these are Inteénded to compensate,

2,16 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debots are Initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methed,
le=s any allowance for expeded oredit losses.

Other recelvables are recognized at amarhized cost, less any allowance fior expected oredit lnsses,
2.17 Trade and other payables

Liabllites for rade and other amounts payalde are recognized inftlally at fair valee and are subseguently messered bl amorl zed
m=t using the effective interest methaod.

2.18 Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and branslation
Items ncluded In these finandal statements are measured using the asrency of the primary econamlc envircnment in which the
Company operabes (the funclional currency), The flinancidl statements are presented in Pok Rupees, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency. AN monetary assets and Eabilities in foreign cumrencies are translabed into Pak Rupees at
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting dabe. Transactions in foreign ourrendes are translated Into Pak Rupees at exchange rates
prevalling at the dates of the ransacdons. Forelgn eschange gains and losses resulting from the setilement of sudh ransactions

and from e ramsdalion al year ond exchange rales of mondary asscls and Babililies denominebed in loreign currencies ane
charged or credited bo statement of profit or loss.

2.1% Revenus recognition
i} Revenue from contracts with customers
a) Sale of goods

Revenwe from the sale of goods 1s recognized at the polnt In Ume when the cestomer oblaing control of the goods, which is
generally at the time of dalivery.
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b} Processing services

The Company provides conwversion [ CMT services to local customers. These services are sold separately and the Company's
contrack with the custormer for services constitute a Engle performance abligation,

Revenwe from services is recognized at the point in tme, generally at the time of dispatch, There are no tems giving rise to
varlable consideration under the Company’s contracts with |t customers,

i) Contract asssts

Contract sssets arige when the Compamy performs ite performance obligations by tansferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays its consideration or before payment (s due. Contract assets are treabed as financial assets for impalrment purposes,

1HEy Right of return assets

Right of return assels represents the right to recover inventory sold to custamers and |s basaed on an estimate of customers who
miay exercise ther right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are messured at the valuee at which the inventory was
previously carried prior to sale, |ese expectsd recovery costs and Ay impairmnent.

iw} Contract liabilities

Contract liability Is the oblgation of the Cormpany o tramsfer goods to a customer for which the Campany has received
consideration from the customer. If & customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment s received, Contract labilibes are recogrized as revenus when the Company sccomplishes s
performance cbligaions under the contract.

V) Other Income recognition
a) Interest

Interest |ncome is recognized as interest acorues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a finandal asset and allocating the inferest income ower the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount
of the financal asset,

b) Rent
Rent revenue & ecognised on straight lina basis over the lease berm.

€) Othar ravanus
Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right o receive payment is established,
2,20 Sagmant reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating {business} segments of the Company. An cperating segment is & component of the
Company that engages in business activiies from whidh it may sam revenues and incur expenses, including revenuss and
expenses that relate to the ransactions with any of the Company's other components, An operating segment's ocperating results
are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about rescurces to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance, and for which discrete financal informatian is available,

Segment resuls that are reported o the Chief Executive Officer include items directly atiributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on @ reasonsble basis. Those income, experises, asseis, lisbilities anc other balances which cannct be
allocated to a particular segment on a reascnable basis ane reported as unallocated,

The Company has thres reportable business segments: Spinning (Producing different quality of vam using natural and artificial
fibers), Weaving (Producing different quality of greige fabric using varn) and Socks (Manufacturing soacks from vam, elastic and
other ancillary materials).

Transactions among the business segments are recordsd at ami's length prices using admissible valuation methods. Inter segment
sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

.11 (Loss) / earnings par shara

The Company presents Loss Per Share (LPS) or Eamings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordimary shares, LPS / EPS is calculated by
dividing the {loss) / profit of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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222 Contingant assets

Contingent assets are disdosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose exdstence will only
be confirmed by the accurrence or non-ocurrence of one oF more uncertaln fulure svents not wholly within the control of the
Company. Cantingent assets are nat recognized until their realization becomes osrtain,

223  Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilides are disclosed when the Company has & possible obligation that srises from past svents and whois existence
will be confirmed only by the ccourrence or non-ocourrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company; or a present obligation that arises form past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflaw of resources embaodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation or when amount of this obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3 SPOMSORS' LOANS
These loans are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company.

2025 2024
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
4, SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FREEHOLD LAND
Balance as at 01 July 360,555 235,857
Surplus arised on revaluation of freehold land during the year . 124,698
Balance as at 30 June 360,555 360,555
5 LOMG TERM FINANCING
Fram banking company - secured
Daminishing musharakah (Nake 5.1) . 105,000
Unsecured
From sponsor director |/ shareholder (Note 5.2) - 56,543
. 161,543
Less: Current partion shown under current Babilities . 91,543
- 70,000

51 Whale of the outstanding amount of the diminishing musharakah was repald on 03 December 2024 to Meezan Bank Limited. It
arried profit at the rate of 3 Month KIBOR plus 2% with floor of 5% and cap of 30% having repricing and payment on quarterly
basis, This loan was secured agalnst equitable morgage of Rupess 278.547 milllon over property located ot 1088, Jail Rowmd,
Farsalabad owned by Mrs. Rubina Amjad, Direclor of the Company along with the personal guarantee of six direciors of the
Cormpany.

52 Fram sponsor direcdtor [ share haldear

Opening balance 56,543 48,518
Add: Fair value adjustment {Mote 29) 8,457 8,025

65,000 56,543
Less: Tramsferred to shart term borrowings (Mate 9.5) 65,000 -
Closing balance - 56, 543

521 This represented unsecured interest free loans abtained from a sponsor director | shareholder of the Company. This loan was due
to be repaid in one bullet instaliment on 30 May 2025. However this amount has now been transferred to short term borrowings.
A portion of the loan of Rupees 65 millian along with the sponsors’ oan shown in Note 3 are subordinated to bank bormowings
amounting to Rupees 306.616 million collectivaly. Fair value of the loan was estimated at the present value of future cash flows
discounted at effective rate of 16.54% (2024: 16.54%) per annum.

6. STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY
Actuarial valustion was carried out as at 30 June 2025. The detail of the actuarial valuation is as follows:
Reconciliation of tha movemeants during the yaar in tha staff retiramant gratuity

Opening balance 16,549 120,777

Provision for the year (Note 6.2) 16,522 55,016

Retirement benefit due but not paid - (80,929)

Retirament benefit paid (12,607) (78,205)

Remeasurements (Mote 5.3) 217 (110}

Clesing balance 20,247 16,549
1
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2028 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

61 Changes in present valua of defined banefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 16,549 120,777
Current servics cost 33,005 49,724
Interest cost 1,614 6,697
Gains arising on plan settlernent (18,097} (1,405)
Retirement benefit due but not paid = (80,929}
Retirernent benefit paicl {12,607 {78,205)
[Rerneasuranents:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 167 290
Experience adjustments (384) (400}
20,247 16,549
6.2 Provision for the year
Current service cost 313,005 49,724
Gains arising on plan settlernent (18,097) (1,405)
Interest mst 1,614 6,697
16,522 55,016
6.3 Rampasuramants
Actuaria lesses from changes in financial assumptions 167 290
Experience adjustments (384) (400]
(217} (110)
20325 2024
&4 Principal actuarisl assumptions used
Discount rate used for interest cost in profit ar loss charge (per annum) 15.75% 16.25%
Digcount rate used for vaar and obligation (par annum) 11.75% 14,75%
Expected rate of salary inorease (per amnnum ) 11.75% 14.75%
Average duration of the defined benefit obligabion 2 2
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05 SUIC 2001-05
set back 1 year set back 1 year
VWithdrawal rae Age based Age based
Retirernent Besum ptan Age 60 Age B0
6.5  The estimated expenses fo be charged to the statement of prafit or loss for the yesr ending on 30 June 2026 i Rupees 18.398
millign.
6.6 Expected benefit payments for the future years:
[ One year ] 1-2 years 2-4 years I Over 4 lpanrll
--------- ~<RUPEES IN THOUSAMND-<<=ccomaamace
9,817 10,481 20,646 54,297
6.7 Sansitivity analysis on defined benafit obligation:
The sensitivity af the defined benefit obligabion as ak reporting date to changes in the weighted principal assumpbion is:
2025 2024
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%:
Increase in assumpbion (Rupees in thousand)) (419} {325)
Decrease in assumpdion (Rupess in thousand) gl 342
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Incresse in assumpbon (Rupees in thousand)) 522 409
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (5043 {398}

The abowve sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while halding all other assumpbons constant. In practice,
this |5 unlikely o occur, and changes in some of the asumplion may be correlated, When calculating the sensithity of the defined
benefit obligation to sgnificant achuarial assumiptions, the same method (present value of the defined berefit obligation caloulated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applled as when calculating the gratuity |lability
recognized within the statement of financial pesition.

The methocls anc types of assumptions used in preparning the sensitivity analysis did not change comparsd to the previous year
exeept for certain changes as ghven in Nobke 6.4,

1
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6.8 Risk associated with the scheme
a) Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on
the final salary {which will dosely reflect inflation and other macresconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary
InEreases,

b) Damographic risks
Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality expenence is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes
wihere the age and senvice distribution is on the higher side,

Withdrawal risk

The risk of achual withdrawals excperience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk
varies with the age, service and the ensitled benefits of the beneficiary.

2025 024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors {(Note 7.1) 439,761 533,843
Aecrued liabilities 57,550 220,374
Contract labillites - unsecured (Mote 23.2) 7,890 48,985
Income tax deducted at source 6,124 6,361
Sales tax payable 5,699 0,248
Workers' welfare fund 10,305 10,305
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable (Nate 7.2) 21,383 21,383
Others 1,749 4,087
550470 534,186
7.1 These indude amaunts due to following relsted parties

Elue Maon Filling Station 10,290 10,290
Idesl Socks 2,948 3,329
13,23% 13,618

7.2 This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess [GIDC) which was levied through GIDC Act, 2015. Supreme Court of
Pakistan uphedd this GIDC Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intra-vires.

8. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Leng term finandng . 2,148
Short term borrowings 13,179 26,419
13,179 28,568
-8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured
Cazh finances (Note 9.1 and 9.4) . 105,762 |
Running finances (Note 9.2 and 9.4) 182,353 198,437
Other short term finances (Note 9.3 and 9.4) 400,852 476,758
583,215 780,345

Othars - unsecurad
Other relaied parties (Hobe 9.5) 1,205,243 529,868

1,786,458 1,610,813

91 These form part of total credit facility of Rupess 462 943 million (2024: Rupess 1,200 million). Rates of mark-up range from
13.22% to 22.83% (2024: 23.10% to 24.91%) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

a2 These farm part of total oredit fadlity of Rupees 200 million {2024: Rupess 200 million). Rates of mark-up range from 13.08% to
23.99% (2024: 22,12% to 26.40% ) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

9.3 These form part of total credit facility of Rupees 540 million (2024: Rupees 1,214 millign). Rates of mark-up range from B.00%
o 25.69% (2024; 17.50% to 26.04%) per annum during the year on balances oubstanding.

9.4 Thiese finances are sscured against joint pari passu charge over present and fulure fized and current asssts, pledge of stocks and
lien on import [ export documents. These are further secured by the personal guarantee of the directors of the Company.

9.5 These represent interest free loans from Chief Exeautive Officer, directors and sponsor of the Company to meet the Company's
warking capital requirements, These also indude an amount of Rupees 65 million (Mate 5.2) which was transferred from long
termn finarmd ng during the year,

1

—i—




IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Annual report 2024-25 @)

i0. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Contingencies

i) The Company has challenged, before Lahore High Court, Lahore, the provisions of SRO 491(1)/2016 dated 30 June
2016 issued under secton 8{1)b) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whersby through amendment (n the earller SRO
1125(1)/2011 dated 31 December 2011, daim of input sales tax in respect of packing material has been disallowed. The
Company filed a \Writ Petition Mo. 96551/2017 dated 03 MNovember 2017 before Lahore High Court, Lahaore. Consequently,
the Company has accounted for input sales tax amounting to Rupess 4.791 million (2024: Rupees 4.791 million) paid on
such itemns as recaivable balance. Lahore High Court, Lahore through its order dated 25 June 2019 has dismissed the
petition filed by the Company. Belng aggrieved by the order, an Intra Court Appeal (ICA) Mo. 1247 of 2020 dated 14
January 2020 has been flled by the Company In Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Company is confident of positive outcome
of the appeal, therefore no provision has been recognized in these financal statements.

ii) The Company received show cause notice from Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue dated 16 December 2019 for
further tax not pald amounting to Rupeses 11,957 million (2024: Rupesas 11.957 million) on sale to unregistered persons
from 01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 along with default surcharge and penalty under section 34(1) and section 33 of Sales
Tax Act, 1990 respectively. Against the order, an appeal has besen filad by the Company on 06 May 2020 before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appesals) which is pending for dedsion. No provision has besn made in these financial
statements as the management is hopeful for positive outcome.

iil) An appeal was filad in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 09 April 2018 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified Liguefled
Matural Gas (RLNG) by Sui Morthern Gas Fipelines Limited (SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 4,953 million (2024: Rupees
4,953 million). This appeal was allowed by Lahore High Court, Lahore on 13 December 2019 by asking Oil and Gas
Regulatory Authority (OGRA) to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping in view
the opinion of the lagal counsel of the Company, the related provision is not made in these financal statemnents as there
are strong grounds that the dedsion of the proposed public hearing of OGRA will be declded In favour of the Company.

iv) Sindh High Court, Karachl made decision on 04 June 2021 about the levy of Sindh Infrastructure Cess, against which
the Company was contingently liable for Rupees 6.177 million (2024: Rupees 6.177 million), The guarantess were
submitted by the Company's Bank for the same amount. Against the dedsion, the Company lodged a constitution petition
No. 4841 [ 2021 dated 13 August 2021, in Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). Thereafter, on 01 September 2021, SCP
allowed the petition, suspended the judgment of Sindh High Cowrt, Karachi and leave to appeal was granted. However, the
case is not yet fixed for hearing by SCP. On advice of legal counsal, in view of possible favourable cutcome, no provision is
accounted for in these financial statements.

v} Faisalabad Electric Supply Company Limited (FESOOD), being aggrieved of the decision made by Lahore High Court,
Lahore on 18 August 2022 against the fusl price adjustment for the month of July 2022 of Rupess 16.585 millicn, filed
CPLA 1231-L/2023 against the Company in Supreme Court of Pakistan on 19 May 2023. On 16 Ociober 2023 Supreme
Court of Pakistan converted it into appeal and allowed it However, on advice of legal counsa, no provision is made in
these financial statements in view of possible favourable ocutcome for the Company.

vi) Guarantees of Rupees 95.611 million (2024: Rupees 94.294 million) are given by the banks of the Company to
SMNGPL apainst gas connedtions and to FESCO against eledricty connections.

b) Commit ments

i) Letters of credit for capital expenditure and other than capital expenditure are of Rupees Nil (2024: Rupees 356.566
million).

il) Commitments arising from short term lease to be recognised on a straight line basis as expense under the practical’
expedient applisd by the Company with respedt to IFRS 16 are of Rupsss 4.520 million (2024; Rupsss 5,085 million)
which are to be paid within one year (2024: within one year).

2025 2024
(RUPEES TN THOUSAND)
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets (Mote 11.1) 1,560,290 1,692,554
Capital work-in-progress (Noke 11.2) 11,870 11,870
1,572, 160 1,704,424
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11.1.5

11.1.8

i11.7

112

12

121

13

131

Particulars of Immaovable properties (. land and bulkdings) in the name of the Company ane a follows:

IdealGroup

Covered
Particulars Location Area of land . |
Acres 5q. Fr.
Manufacturing faclities and vacant land ~ 32-EM Shelkhupura Road, Tehsll Jaramwala, District Faisalahad 21544 392 957
Hesad alfice (Maote 11.1.6) 1NBR, Jail Rosd, Faisalabed L2500 24 728
Otk office (Note 11.1.7) 1204, 12th Foor, Tricon Conporale Cenler, Jail Road, Lahore 3273
Thuis building iy constructed and capilallged on the land which is in the name of a director of the Com pany.
T hete cxvyesread Area &t thils location conslats of Bulkding onby Bichre of mult-stonny plara
Capital work -in-progress
Stand-by | Intangible
equipment | assets Totsl
At 30 June 2023 B,395 8,395
Add: Addpens dung the year 9,356 - 0,156
Lea: T ranafmrrad 1o opeathy fead smats dug the yesr (5,881) (3,881}
At 30 June 2024 345 B354 11,0
Movemant during the vear -
At 30 Jyne 2025 3,475 5,395 11,0
2025 2024

INTANGIELE ASSETS

Computer softwaras

Met carrying value basis
Qpaemineg peel ook value
Lessisz Arnoelization (Mole 26)
Ll Nt book value
Gross carrying amount

Col
Aoosmulated amortization

Cloging net book value

Arnortization rabe (per annum)

The computer softwares are fully amortized bt w8l in e of the Compaeny.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Secunty deposits (Mot 13.1)
Margin against hank guarantes
Prepayments

Lass: Curmant portion shown under current assets (Note 159)

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

L] 2,659
Hh4 1,/9%
Hest
B116 8,116
(&,118) {7.252)
B4
00 and A and
33.35% 33.33%
1,/d% 1,789
r.ond
768 929
9,557 2,718
63g e
5,919 2,122

Thetsi imyalniby Inclucle Iideresst fres dediifity depodits placesd with utllity companies for the provislon ol utiliny connections.,

|
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2025 2024
[(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET
Taxable temporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization (150,981) (162,372}
Deductible temporary differeances
Sraff retirement gratuity 5872 28,269
Unused tax losses, unabsorbed tax depredation and amortization 241,576 173,449
Allowances for doubtful receivables 2,422 882
Unused tax credits against minimum tax and alternate earporate tax 184, 657 168,711
434,527 371,311
Defarred income tax asset i 2ﬂ3:§4-5 __ZD-B.?-_SB-
Unrecoghized deferrad income tax asset (Note 14.2 and Note 14.3) (2683,546) (104,819)
At the end of the year - 104,120
14.1 Movement in the deferred income tax asset / (liability) balance is as follows:
At the beginning of the year (104,120)
(Less) [/ add.
-aceierated tax depreciation and amortization (11,391) 45,981
-staff retirement gratuity 22,357 (3,751}
=urused tax losses (68,127) [74,953)
-provision for GIDC - 4,341
-allowances for doubtful recelvables {15400 -
-urused tax credits against minimum tax and alternate corporate tax (15,946) (168,711)
-unrecognized deferred income tax asset | 178727 92,973
104,120 (104,120)
- (104,120)
14.1.1 Chargad to the statement of profit or loss:
Met movement of tamporary differences [Mate 14.1) 104,120 (1D4,120)
Remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity 63 32
104,057 (104,152}

14.2 The Company has unusad tax losses of Rupess 833.020 million which include unabsorbed tax deprecation of Rupees
309973 million and tax losses of Rupeses 523 047 million whidh will expire as follows:

Accounting year in which tax

Accounting year to which tax loss relates ‘Ammt of tax loss loss will expire
RUPEES IN
THOUSAND
2025 110,748 2031
2024 134,B46 2030
2023 277,453 2029
523,047

Deferred income tax asset has been recognized against Rupess 142, 687 million of unused tax |osses, unabsorbed tax
depreciation and amortization. While deferred income tax asset is not recognized on the remaining amount of Rupees
98,889 million,

|
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14.3 The Company has unused tax oedits against minimum tax and alternative corporate tax avallable for carry forward under
Section 113 and 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as detailed below. Deferred income tax asset is not recognized
against these tax credits.

Accounting
Accounting year te which the minimum tax / year in which
alternative corporate tax relates Nature Amount of tax tax cradit
will expire
RUPEES IN -
THOUSAND
2025 IMirlrwm Ba 44,750 2028
2024 Minimum tax 54,621 2027
2023 Minimwm tax £9,725 2026
2022 Alternative corporate tax 3,948 2032
2021 Minimum tax 21,613 2026
184,657
2025 2024

{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
15. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 53,202 49,314

Spare parts 43,430 52,808

Loose tools 477 405

97.109 102 607

16. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials (Mote 16.1 and Nete 16.2) 126,579 266,905
Viork-in-process 14,553 84,013
Finished goods 141,353 333,375

Viiaste 726 1,045
283,211 685,338

16.1 Raw materials indude stodk in transit of Rupess 24,510 million {2024: Rupsss 79,109 million).
16.2 These include stock of Rupess NIl (2024: Rupsses 4. 533 million) sent o outside partles for processing.
16.3  Stock in trade indudes stock amounting to Rupees 22 836 million {2024: Rupees Nil) valued at net realizable value,

16.4 The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized as an expense during the year was
Rupess 5.856 million (2024: Rupees Nil).

17. TRADE DEBTS

Considerad good:
Securad (against letters of credit) 8,770 31,697
Unsacured 185,024 158 826
193,734 230,523
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 17.3) B 167 2,989
187 627 227,534
17.1  Trade debts in respect of foregn and local jurisdicions is given under:
Denmark 638 44,489
Germany 8,770 18,860
MNetherlands 149 134
Portugal 47,661 12827
United Kingdom 964 =
United States of America 34,300 33,150
Pakistan 95,145 118,065
187,627 227 534

——————————————— T ——————————————————————————
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17.2 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the ime of delivery, while payment |s generally due within 10 to 30
days in case of local sales and 30 to 120 days in case of export sales

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

17.3  Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 2,989 2,989
Add: Recognized during the year (Mot 27) 3,178
Clasing balance 6,167 2,989

is. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:
Employess - interest fres
- Executives
agalnst expenses 485 2,595
— Dther employess
agalnst expenses 2173 1,462
agalnst salary (Note 18.1) 1,317 579
3,490 2,041
3,975 4,636
Current partion of [ong term loans . 147
Advances to suppliers [ contractors 13,991 12,294
Lettars of credit - 701
17,966 17,728
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 18.2) 2,184 51
15,782 17,677

18.1 These represent interest free loans given to employees for meeting their personal expenditure, These are secured against
balance ta the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity and are recoverable in equal monthly installments.

18.2 Provision for doubtful loans and advances

Opening balance 51 51
Add: Recognized during the year (Note 27) 2,133 -
Clasing balance 2,184 £1

19. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 517 40
Prepayments 959 303
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 13) 638 596
2,114 539

— 1
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
20, ADVANCE INCOME TAX AND LEVY - NET
Advance income tax - net
Advance income tax 108,235 [ 118,888
Less: Provision for taxation (40,269) (40, 269)
68,966 78,619
Levy payable - nat
Prepaid levy 18,659 14,134
Less: Levy payable (44,750) 59,463)]
(26,091) (55,329]
42,875 23,290
21. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Sales tax refundable [ receivable 277,739 289,764
Export rebate 24,122 21,542
Others 4,688 4 200
306,549 315,506
22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:
On current accounts (Note 22.1) 14,225 73412
On PLS saving accounts 26,016 21,636
40,241 95,048
Cash in hand 1,483 1,314
41,724 96,362

22,1  These include foreign currency accounts containing USD 2,028 and Eure 152 (2024 USD 1,959 and Euro Nil),

23, REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Local sales (Note 23.1) 2,934,003 4,393,740
Export sales 545,963 1,158,249
Export rebate 3,562 7474

3,583,528 5,555 463

23.1  Local sales

Yam / socks 2,021,640 4,405,587
Waste 21,018 26,696
Sizing income - 1,849
Conversion income | CMT income [ cloth sale 1,000,621 723,333
Lyoeell / visoose [ cotton 418,846 34,625

3,462,125 5,192,090
Less: Sales tax 528,122 798,350

3,634,003 4,393,740

23.2 The Company has recognized revenue of Rupess 38,080 million [2024: Rupess 31,059 million) from amounts induded in
conltrad |labilities (Mobte 7) at the year end.

- 1
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
24, COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 24.1) 1,368,585 3,063,299
Cost of raw material sold 366,256 26,130
Salaries, wages and other benefits (Note 24.2) 383,449 423,914
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consurmed 149,800 193,946
Packing materials consumed 100,817 185,242
Sizing materials consurmed 61,078 27,410
Ouiside processing f conversion and other charges 11,241 54,709
Repair and maintenance 1,676 3,209
Fuel and power 680,010 1,008,284
Insurance 14,442 15,275
Rent, rates and taxes (Note 24.3) 6,780 6,930
Other factory overheads 937 897
Depreciation (Note 11.1.3) 94,573 102,174

3,239 644 5,111,419
Work-in-process

Opening stock 84,013 99,755
Closing stock (14,553) (84,013)
69,460 15,742

Cost of goods manufactured 3,309,104 5,127,161

Finished goods

Opening stock 334,420 L58,752
Closing stock (142,079) (334,420)
192,341 224,332

3,501,445 5,351,493

24.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 266,505 288,868
Add: Purchased during the year 1,228,259 3,041,336
1,495,164 3,330,204
Less: Closing stock (126,579) {266,905)

1,368, 585 3,063,299

24.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees B.023 million
(2024: Rupees 41.355 million).

24.3 These indude rent in respect of short term lesses amounting o Rupees 6.780 million (2024: Rupess 6.780
million).

25. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits (Note 25.1) 14,086 15,521
Qutward freight and handling 21,000 31,041
Commission to salling agents 37,476 61,127
Travelling and accommaodation 1,790 1,505
Postage and telephone 2,340 337
Others 2,218 3,056

78,910 112 587

25.1 Salaries and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 1.261 million (2024:
Rupess 2,123 million),

1
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2025 2024
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
26.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits (Nobe 26.1) 102,283 135,136
Directors' remuneration 11,600 11,600
Rent, rates and taxes 6,946 7,302
Legal and professional 1,611 849
Insuranos 6,093 6,101
Travelling and conveyance 9,365 5,637
Vehides' running 21,730 32,083
Erbertainment 10,300 13,252
Auditor's remuneration (Nobe 26.2) 1,435 1,360
Advertisemant 91 79
Postage and telephone 6,220 9,902
Electricity, gas and water 13,552 18,064
Printing and stationery 1,417 2,527
Repair and maintenance 5,065 8,252
Fes and subscription 3,223 6,000
Miscellaneous 8,648 8,694
Amortization (Note 12) 864 1,795
Depreciation (Mote 11.1.3) 29,776 33,042

240,219 302,575

26.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits indude staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 7,238 million {2024: Rupees 11,538
miillion).

26.1 Auditor's remuneration

At fee 1,200 1,200
Half yearly review 110 110
Certification and other services 125 50

1,435 1,360

27. OTHER EXPENSES

Daonation (Nobte 27.1) 440 575
Trade debts written off 19 42
Allowance for expected cradit loss (Mote 17.3) 3,178 -
Met exchange loss - 5,318
Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 18.2) 2,133 -

5,770 5,935

27.1 ‘Whole of the donation was given 1o Faisalabad Women Chamber of Commerce and Industry where a director Mrs, Rubina
Amjad is Executive Member,

28. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on deposits with banks (Note 28.1) 2,648 3,232
Met exchange gain o1 =
3,349 3,232
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,760 553
Rental income 22,891 18,355
Credit balances written back 68,175 13,617
92,826 32,525
96,175 35,757

281 Rate of profit on bank deposits as disdosed in Note 22 ranges from 5.72% o 16.00% (2024: 5.75% to 20.50%) per annum.

1
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29. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on
Long term finandng
Shaort term barrowings

Fair value adjustment of loans fram spansor director | shareholder [Note 5.2)

Bank charges and commi|ssion

30. LEVY

Charge for the year!
Current (Mobe 30.1)
Prior year

IdealGroup

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
8,994 29,901
102,893 130,346
8,457 8,025
7,767 11,287
128,111 179.559
44,750 68,755
- 708
44 750 68 453

30.1 The provision for current levy represents minimum tax on turmover as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Reconcillation of tax
expenses and product of acoounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not given in view of unused tax losses of the

Company as given in Nobe 14.2 to these financial statements.
31, TAXATION
Deferred
32. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share which is based on:

Loss for the year {Rupess in thousand)
Welghtedl sverage number of ardinary shares [ Mumbers)
Loss per share [Rupess)

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss bafore taxation and lavy

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other tems:
Depredation (Note 11.1.3)

Amuortization (Note 12)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (MNote 11,1.4)
Provision for staff retirement gratuity (Mote 6.2)
Allowance for expected credit losses (Noke 27)

Met exchange (gain] [ loss

Finance cost [Note 29)

Credit balances written back (Note 28)

Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Nobe 27)
Working capital changes (Note 33.1)

311 Working capital changes

Decrease [ (increase) in current assets
- Stores, spare parts and |looss tools

- Stodk-in-trade

- Trade debbs

- Loans and advances

- Short term deposit and prepayments
= Oither receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

104,057 (104 152)
2025 2024
{423,553 (322,240
g 620 000 9 920 000
{42.70) (32.48)
2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
(274,752) (356,929)
124,349 136,118
864 1,795
(1,780) (553)
16,522 55,016
3,178 :
(999) 176
128,111 179,559
(68,175) (13,517)
2,133 =
217,361 269,200
146,832 270,763
5,498 31,390
402,127 262,037
37,733 139,901
{238) 2,671
{1,175) {508}
8,957 3,366
452,902 438,757
(235,541) __ (169,557)
217,361 269,200
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33.2 Reconcillation of movements of llabilithes tn cash flows arising from financing activities:

2025 2024
:: Short term | Unclaimed Tetal Long term | Short term | Unclaimed Total

financing boarrowings | dividend Nimancing | barrowiags | dividend

cemrammrrennn (RUPEBES IN THOUSAND]) -=vrremmmmes  smmssmmsmesssss (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) ==neeemssmens
Balance ps st 01 July 161,543 1610813 2,500 1,774,955 188,518 1,439,323 2801 1,630,642
Othes changes - morn cash
T (56,543) 65,000 . B.457 8,025 . . 8,075
Short term borrowings - net . 112645 . 112,545 . 171,490 . 171,450
Repayment of long term finandng (105,000} - . {105,000) {35,000 . . {35,000
Divadend pasd . - (33 (3} . {202} (202y
Balance & 8t 30 Jurs « 1, 7BRASE 2506 1,791,054 161,541 1,610,813 1,599 1,774,955

34, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

Thee axgpgprogate amount charged in the finandal stalermmts. Ffor remoneration induding ofl benefits (o Chiel Fasoutive Oficer; directors and executives
of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Diractor (Mote 34.2 Exacutives
2025 1024 2025 2024 W25 | 034
RUPEES IN THOUSAMND

Managerial remune ration 5,455 5,455 4,364 4, T4 17,557 48,05
Allewances

Otheers 345 545 LK ] EEL] 3,756 4,808

Stall retiramamt gratuity pakd 1,011 5 400

£.000 5,000 4,800 4,800 42,324 58,301

Mamber of persons 1 1 1 1 20 5

34.1 Chief Exeative D#ficar, sarme directors and cortsin exerulives bre proviced with Company mainteined vehides and are entided o reamburseament of
trvelling expenses and other utlities.

34.2 This represents remunerstion paid to Mr, Omer Saeed, & Direcor of the Company.
34.3 During the yoar, an amount of Rupees 800,000 (2024; Rupees 600,000) was paid w cight direcors (2024: cight directors) as meeting fee,

34.4 Apart from the mesting fee, no remuneralion was gall o non-ssecitive dirsctors o the Compay,

2025 024

35. MNUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Mumber of employees & at 30 June (Note 35,1} G 637
Average mumber of employess during the yer 47 BIR

35.1 These represent the il number of employees employed by e Company at the year end incheding per manent employess and others who have not
beroma aligible o ba permanant,

36. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parlis comprizse ssodaleal company | undertakings, olher relaled parties and key management personnd . The Company in the nonmal
colrss of business cartes out transedions with warious relabed parties, Detsll of ansscdions with relabed parties, otfwer than Toas which e Dess
sperifically disc osed elsawhers in thee financal datements & = follows:

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Mare Basis of re lationship Nature of transactions
Assaciated company [ undertakings:
Blue Moon Flling Station Dérector of the Company s the member  Fud purchased 4,341
of Boand of Trustees
Wangas Spinning Mills (Private) Limited Common direcorship fental expense 4,500 o, 500
Sales 8,813
[deal Socks Dwectors of the Company are the Rental expense 2,280 2,280
mambers of Board of Trustees
Other related parties
Direchors and sporsors Mermbers of board of deeciors, key  loens oblsined fiream) noAars 217.515

management personnel and spomsor dmectninssponsor- net
36,1 Detal of compensation o key management personne| momprising of Chied Esecutive QOfficer, direchors anrd seenylives is disdiosed in Nobe 34,

1
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37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2025 2024

Spinning

100 % plant capacity converted to 205 count based on 3

shifts per day for 807 shifts (2024: 1 098 shifts) (kgs.) 9894615 17 836890
Actual plant capacity converted to 20s count based on 3

shifts per day for 672 shifts (2024: 1 080 shifts) {(Kgs.) 5524932 11 154 492
Weaving

100 % plant capacity converted to 60 picks based on 3

shifts per day for 1 095 shifts (2024: 1 098 shifts) (Sq.Mtr.) 27458309 28879 736
Actual plant capacity converted to 60 picks based on 3

shifts per day for 933 shifts (2024: 715 shifts) {5g.Mtr.) 14 392 097 11 023 054

Socks
Capacity of such unit cannot be determined due to nature of its operations.

37.1 REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

Production remained low during the year due to operational constraints faced in spinning segment. The
limiteqd availability of resources and adjustments in processes contributed to reduced output in
production of weaving segment. Moreover periodical scheduled maintenance was also the factor for low
production of weaving segment.




Annual report 2024-25 @

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

G,
E
m..
FETEN Teo it L TR FeE 1801 TOELre 105 382 BRI Er 1 T uanEnd [EOURUY B U e )E sl s sanpgey el
EB:OBIE [T T Wolmod |EDUNUL 0 JUBLBGES SO0 ST SIEEEE |
[T T4 SLETE i - Andy dum ) SIUGOU ARy
QZ1'+01 R XE) AL fRLEE
R PaE 0 R
CLE'ESI'E LET'515°2 o0 s T F¥0 O¥p [FTHTTH T T utyEod |EpUNUY O JUBWOYES SO0 T SJ0R |F0 L
(ONVEROHL NI 533dn4)
| oL | seoz || eEoT || STOT YTOT | s | [ rTEE |  stor |
[ Awmdwed - [maL | | oS | Banarang | | Buiuurds |
S| TRY PUT SINSEE JUSESNE B ELIOA O UORIFDE0OFY
Tz TESSETH) UOREYE] SYE 5507
151 '+01 LLS0°RT) UOREE]
(E9t'60) UORL W} g
(855'6e1) 33544 A0 20U
(SE6'SH (DLL's) RS S
ssasusdeD payeroeun
[ty A8 (180wt} t = [FFTR )] T Z19°6L) {BIT'RLI [T [FFNFIY sEud e PEEIOgEUN
P uosn o yod | (0}
L5LTSE LiTog - BI5TS [T F4L ] T8FSE FLLBE SwOnu B0
(5450000 [{yra T4 . . (g12°88) (19E 06} {1 a1 (r9s'ee) (Lzrest) (9LT'we) DU BAREASIIRIDY
gs'zind Lty T4 z = loearsa) faEe) {ee5'e1) {zeg's) (anzzt) (1e2'1) T UGS
046007 £80'73 E : TLE'86 0L Détr (ces'zT) 602°20T (286'78) g  (s50q) 550U
(EGK"1SE'S) 15" 105°C) FET'IT TEE'PIE (rEr'ac) LT61E9) (595’ z8) fcng'ozsd (9ze'148'ed LED"LLE'R) S 0 B0
EOk'EE5'S BTE'EISE (PRT'¥IT} (ZEE»TE) 552946 BIS6EL Cw)'8T0 TR ) LEELB'E SSO'WEI'T
. - BT ¥l (LG recs - - - . ¥B1 L TLEFL LmLion g
f9r'a%5's BrEEASE - - S97°946 BI9'B6L L] -TAa ] ¥ ST 'E E7:'600'T Busrg
LRI )i SPROUDY Wy aMUEsay
(OMvSNOM L NI 533404}
__¥Eor | [ sTOT _¥tor | [ sgor | [ wmor | [ ST et | Stor | [ wor | [ &IeT
. SHDESURL
Auedwe - (e NP — SHI0% By ey Buuuds

NOLLYIWEOINT LNIWD35

'BE

63




Annual report 2024-25 @

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

IdealGroup

ESH 655 & BES EBS £ ) B¢ b S ELE SELFLE £51554 L 2890 E
BIT'EES v ] BAT'SDT BEE'ET SH'ETE = - - Bus0ou BUEs {285 R0 [ SWeoul |0/ SU00u uotsEaun
Fa e D&H"E1 BT I - . E£L01 - i)
ET9'E0 F WYL 2 BhE i Ls = BIZE HE b e LEETZU0E S SRR |RI0A) [ oS [ uRy,
s2U|| 3385 [ sEnpod Jofew g saSWoEnD s FIREUDD Wodp anusaad jo uepebaabfibes)g e

ES 655G B75ERS £ G 0/ 5 TN SH0'BTE T TS £61 55/ F T/ GI0'T
BELERE E E00'FEG'T FHETT BET 05T TTE605 ST ERISSLE ERLGA0T UELERE,]
/RTBTE BT RO /RT'RTE BATROT - - - - EIBLTY 0 SRS Pagin
SBI'D1 Bsa'cl G601 Bsa'el - - - winpSuy e
fER'Es wLU'EL BEB'OE FITEE b 1L wknly
GETRIT Tt b S HTRIT BT JEBTIDY
Z6a'DE - Z55'0E - - - - puRitd
[{ s 11704 ML'en SEL1S - I Eh Y
ELF aa'Ts ELb ol 719 £9 Aty
T EET LA A RS T L AU
3 0sE'l = ost’l : B
LETEET V'L SEa'an 59T [ 4} Lunedjog

s aerant s e st v e v (S YEIMOHLL M SEBAITH et s st g e

[ wzor | [ setor | [ wtoz | | STOT TEOT [ SEoz | [ vzox |  =zor

| Aupdwos - oo ) 11 [EEL ] Bunawapy 11 Bupuu|ds

A0 PR ) SARRUSGy (B3 0eB 00 Jod B 510 MIEAIT BILIEIED WG] ONLEAL S USLIBo § Auedwos 3|

wogyeuep) |exyduboss  PRE




IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Annual report 2024-25 @)

38.4 All non-current azssts of the Company as at resorting date are located and operating in Pakistan.

38.5 Revenue s recognized at the point in time as per terms and condibans af underlying contrads with customers.

38.6 Revenua from major customers
The Company's revenue is earned from a long mix of customers.

39. FINANCIAL RISH MAMAGEMENT

39.1 Finandal risk factors
The Company's ativities expose It 1o a variety of finandal risks namely market risk [currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. Risk managemeant is carried out by the Company's finance department under polices
approved by the Board of Directors. Such polices entail identifying, evalusting and addressing Ananclal risks of the Company.

The Company's overall risk management procedures b5 minimise Bhw pobential adverte effects of these rigks on the Company's
performancs are as follows:

{a) Market risk
(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuaste because of
changeas in foreign exchange rates. Currengy risk arises main'y from future commerdal ransactions or receivables and
payables that exist due bo ransactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to cwrrency risk arising from various ourrency expasures, primarily with respect o United
States Dollar (USD) and Ewro, Currently the Company’s forsign exchange risk exposure is restricted to bank balances
and the amounts receivable from the fereign entities, The Com pany's exposurs to currency risk was as follows:

2025 2024
Trade debts - USD 157,520 348,776
Cash at banks - USD 2,028 1,959
150,548 348,735
Trade debts - Euro 143,898 43,511
Cazh &t banks - Euro 152 -
144,050 43,511
Fellowing significant exchange rates were apolied during the year:
Rupaas par US Dollar
fverage rate 280.95 28245
Reporting date rate 283.60 278.30
Rupeas par Euro
fverage rate 315.07 305.80
Reporting date rate 332.25 297.88

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened [ strengthened by 5% against the USD and Euro with all
other variables held constant, the impact on loss after tawation for the year would have besn Rupess 4 655 million
[2024; Rupess 5.446 million) lower [ higher, mainly 8= & result of exchange gains | losses on translabion of foreign
exchange denominated finandal instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been
calculated on & symmetric bazie, In meanagement's oplnion the seraitivity analysis s unrepresentative of inherent
ourrency risk as the year end =xposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

(ii) Interast rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value ar future cash flows of a finandal instrument will Auctuate because of
changes in market inberest rates.

The Company's interest rake rizk arises from shark term barrowings and bank balances in =aving accourts. Financal
instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rabe risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate
expose the Campany to fair value |ntenest rabe rid,

1
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At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing finandial instruments was:

2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixed rate instruments
Finandal liabilities
Shart term borrowings 182,000 132,000
Floating rate instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances - saving accounts 26,016 21,636
Finandal liabilities
Long term financing 105,000
Short term borrowings 401,215 648,945

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash Mow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rabes at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / |ower with all other variables held constant, loss after
taxation for the year would have béen Rupees 3.752 million (2024: Rupees 7.323 million) higher / |ower, mainly as a
result of higher / lower interest expense / income on floating rate financal instruments. This analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts of financial instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whole year.

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a finandal instrument will cause a finandal loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of finandal assets represents the maximum credit expoasure. The maxdimum
exposure o credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Loans and advances 1,317 726
Deposits 3,306 1,829
Trade debts 187,627 227,534
Other receivables 4,688 4,200
Bank balances 40,241 95,048

243,179 329,337

The aredit quality of finandal assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to extemal oredit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate.

The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures limiting transactions with the specdific
ounterparties and contineally assessing the credit worthiness of the counterparties.

The Company's palicy IS to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the polices and guidsines approved by the
management, Credit risk arises from trade debts, bank balances, other recejvables, loans, advances and depaosits.

To manage expasure to aredit risk in respedt of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into account the
austomer's finandal position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and oredit terms are approved by the senior
management and where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties, Export sales are usually
secured through letters of credit. The management has set a maximum credit period limit for each type of customers in
order to reduce the credit risk,

1
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The Company's exposure to credlt risk reated to tracde debts due from other than the related party is as follows:

GROSS AMOUNT EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS
2025 2024 2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Mot past due 116,017 207,149 - -

Upta 1 month 43,002 10,053 - .

1 te & months 24,012 8,956 = =

& maonths to 1 year 4 506 1,376 - -
More than 1 year 6,167 2,989 6,167 2,989
193 794 230,523 6,167 2,989

The management believes that all unimpaired amounts are collectable in full, based on historical payment behaviour and
extensive analysls of consurmer credit risk.

Rating 2025 2024
Short Lang
Eaiin i Agency (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Banks
Conventional Accounts
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limitad AL+ Ab+ PACRA 1,724 1,693
MCE Bank Limited AL+ AAA PACRA 418 1,186
Allied Bank Lirmibad AL+ ARA PACRA 206 E9
United Bank Limited AL+ AAR VIS 1 28
Faysal Bank Limited AL+ A PACRA 692 22
MNational Bank of Pakistan AL+ AR FPACRA 17 356
Habib Bank Limited AL+ AAA VIS 101 177
Askari Bank Limited AL+ Abl+ PACRA 1460 167
Bank Alfalab Limibad AL+ AR R PACRA 25,887 21,408
Barik Al-Habily Lirnitecd AL+ ASA PACRA 20 7
The Bank of Punjab AL+ AL+ PACRA 7681 24,634
Soneri Bank Limited AL+ Aa- FACRA 15 56

36,932 40,6823
Shariah Compliant Accounts
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al Al VIS 1,178 1,165
Hakbib Bank Limited AL+ AAA VIS 43 203
Meezan Bank Limited AL+ AAA VIS 2086 43, 845
BankIslami Pakistan Limited Al Ap- PACRA 2 4

2309 45,225
40 741 55 ME

Due to the Company's long stiznding business relationships with these counterparties and afier giving due consideration to
their strong financal standing, management doss nok expect non-perfarmance by these counterparties on their obligations
to the Company, Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

{c) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk i the risk that an entity will enoounter difficulty in mesting obligations assodated with finandal labilites,

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintzining suffident cash and the availability of funding through an adegusts
amount of committed credit facilities, At 30 Juna 2025, the Company had Rupees 619,728 million (2024: Rupees 1,853,055
millien} available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupses 41.724 million (2024: Rupses 96,362 million) cash
and bank balances. Moreover, the Company has Rupess 208,134 million (2024: Rupses 490440 million) unfunded
borrowing limits out of which Rupsss 101,788 millien {2024: Rupees 137,037 million) were utilized. Management believes
the liquidity risk to be low, Followings are the contractusal maturities of finandal liabilities, incuding interest payments, The
amounts disdosed in the bles are undiscountad cash flows.

1
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Contractual maturities of fimancial liabilties ss at 30 June 225

Carmrying Contractual : Mara than 3
A 0k cash Mews B manths of lass =131 manths L-2 yanrs "

RUPEES TNT HOAUSA ND-

MNon-derivative financhal llabilities:

Trade and cther payables £E0,859 450,659 450,859 E = -
Uriciarnad diwidend 2,508 .59 2,506
Sirrued mark-up 13,179 13,179 13,179 . - N
Hiert W bonowings 1,788,858 1.B18,7I0 1,819,700
Z, 465 Q5T 1,196,334 4,296,334 = - =

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2024:

Careying Contractud & months or l=ss 6123 manths 1-2 years Moro than 2

Amounk cash Aows YEars

RUPEES INTHOUSA ND-
Mon-derivative financial |isbilities

Long beren Finaning IE1,543 107 548 26,630 21,744 47,649 38,665

I v ard ather pavales 1% A1 £ LR

Uridarned dividend 2,559 1,590 2,589 - - -

Acoued msik Lp 28 sb3 28 a5 28 588

Shiort term Borrowings 1,610,813 1,693,185 1,545,211 145,554 A -
2,582 550 L1711 436 1385324 238 £0R 47 649 35,B85

I b eotrnctusl el flows ralvmng o tha xsovs finereinl lob tes Favs haer detasminad on B baes of irtereer § rackop | profs coses offective am ok 30 Juna, Tha
ratas af inserest | proft f wark op have been daclyssd in Kol 9 b2 thase Foaras statements.

3.2 Finandal instrisments by eategories

2025 2014
[RUPEES IN THOUSAMD)
AL amvrtized cost
fscate as par etateivent of finandal postion
Loans and advanms 1,317 Fr.
Crepasils 9,306 182%
| race chasts 187 621 2274834
Cithrr rocmwahles 4, GRE A, Ml
Cash and bank Lalariies 41,724 D8, 382
44,6862 330,651
Liabilitles as per statemant of financlal posithen
Lizng barer Finansng : 161,54
| 1zde aivd othe pavables 4500, 550 9136
lnsamad dividond A 2,599
Awruet] msk-up 13,17 28 558
Shioet frrm borrowangs 1,798, 458 1,810,813
1 285 052 2 581 E55
9.3  Reconoliation of fimancisl assets and Bnancal (kebilities b the line de ms presented in the statement of Bnancial posdion is a3 fellews:
P, Fi] 4034 .
sl 53 per
. Dther than Rtel o g Financial | | PEEthan || et of
Finandial a syt fina neisl asels staternent of [—— financial finascial
finandal position aEEOLE =5
position
——nmre {RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Aszets as per statement of finandal postion
Loy e depusis and pispaymsnls a7 130 8ol 108 333 132
Trade dat= 187 AT - 1HFAIT 22753 - P
Liaris arvd advarias 137 14,455 15,782 TiE 16551 17,677
Shioet Term depaels and prapagments s1r 1.59¢ Z.114 2 o 93
Cither receivabiles 4,663 301 558 306,549 400 311,306 315,506
Casn and bank baanoes 41,724 41724 Db, 182 06,362
HA G 116,053 562715 330 651 3129 A8 BN 140
i 2025 2024
Total ss per
Financial Other than Yotal ox pur Francal | TEerthan o emant of
lisbilitlos  [financial lakilitias |, SEATSmert of Nabilities Nerciak financial
finandal position liabdlitios
position
s s eaam s snees (QUPEES TN T HOUSAMND) === aa canmnara
Liahilities as per statement of finandal position
Liemg bafen Ginariang . = = 161 543 = 16] 543
Trade ard sther payahles 2E0,859 5610 55040 AL 15,050 854,186
Untarmad dividerd 2,505 - 3,586 2,598 = 1,599
Acorued mak-up 13,17 15,179 28,560 28,568
Short term Borrowings 1,788 458 = 1,788 458 1,410,813 = 1,610,813
25082 a561L 138703 JsEigsn T R Yokl

- 1
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39.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

AS on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsatting a5 there are no enforceable master nething
arrangements and similar agreements,

39.5 Capital risk management

The Company's objedives when managing copilal are o safeguard the Company's abllity o continue as a going ooncem inorder o
prowide reburms for shareholders and benefits for ofher stakeholders and 1o maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of
capital, In order to malntaln or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amownt of dividends to be pald to shareholders,
Issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company
monitors the capital struchere on the basis of gearing ratho, This ratio |s calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed.
Borrowings represent short term borrowings [except subordinated loans) obtained by the Company as referred to in Mote 9. Eguity
represonls Tolal equity’ as shown in the statement of finandal positen and U pedion of loan from sponsor director / sharsholder which
15 subordinated tn bank horrowings as referred in Note 5200 Total capital employed indudes Total equity’ plus borowings. The
Campany's strategy remaingd unchancsd fram last year,

2025 2024
Dorrowings {Rupes in wousand) 1,723,642 1,707,590
Total equity (Rupees in thousand) 247,93C 671,341
Totnl capital employed (Rupees in thausand) 1,971,578 2,378,081
Gearing ratio (Percentage) B7.42 71.76

The incresse in georing rotio resulted primarily from loss after mxation of the Company.

40, RECOGMNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair volue i the amount that would be recoived o sell an geset or cither poy or troansfer o lability in an orderly ransocion between
miarkel parlicipanls al he measurernonl date. Comseguenlly, dillerenoes may arise belweon e camying wdue and e Tair value
ertimatess, The Company dassifie falr walue measorsmont wilng 4 faie value hisrarchy that reflects the sonificance of the inpubs e in
miaking the massremente. 10e 1o shott fem nature, carmying amaunts of cermaln financial assets, and financlal labllides are ronslderss] fo

be the sama as thair falr value. For the majonty of tha non-curment receivables, the fair values are also not significanty differant to their
camying amounts. The fair value hierardhy is as follows:

Due to short term nature, camying amounts of cerain financal assex and financial liabilites are considerad o be the same as their fair
valua, For tha majority of the non current recavables, the fair valuas ame blse not sgnificantly different to their carrying amouwnts,

Lewel 1: Quulol rrarket r.n'it.t_' it an aclive inarkel for an idenlica fndrument.

Lewel 2: 1he fair valua of Anancal instruments that ame not fraded inoan actve markee (for aample, over-the-counter derivatives) i
deterrnined using valuaton techniques which maximize the use of observable marksr datz and rely as |itde as possible on engty-spedfic
astimatas. IF all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are obsarvable, the instrumant i induded in lavel 1.

Level 3: Valuation tedhnigues using significant un-observable inputs,
However a5 ar reporting date, the Company has o such type of financil netruments which are required o he grouped info thess evek.
41. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCLIAL ASSETS
(i) Fair value hierarchy
Judgments and estimates are mads in determining the fair values of the non financial assets that are recognized and measured at fair
value in these finoncial sisterments, To provide an indicotion abouwt the reliability of the inpuls wed in determining fair valee, the

Comparyy has diassifiod ils mon-fimancial essets into e lollowing throe kevels,

Level 1 Level2 | Level2 | Total |

-------------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND-—------mcmmeeemee
At 30 June 2025
Freehik) and - 96,770 - 396,770
AL 30 June 2024
Freshodd land 306, 770 306,770

The Company’s pollcy 1S o recognize transfers Into and transfers out of falr value lierardyy evels a5 al the e of the reporting perkod.

There weere no ransiens bebween bevels 1 and 2 Tor recuring lalr value messuraments durlng the year, Further, Tere was no transfer in
and ourt of lewel 3 messurements,

1
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(i} valuation techniques used bo determine level 2 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuation for Its freshold land (dassified as property, plant and equipment) at least after every thres
years. The management updates the assessment of the fair value of freshold land, @king into aoount the most recent iIndependent
vahsation. The management determines freehold land's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair
valuwe of frechold land is currenl prices in an active market for similar lands.

Valuation processes

The Company engages extemal, independent and qualified valuer to detarmine the fair value of the Company's freehold land at leest after
evary three yaars. The latest valusstion of freshold lond was performed by Messrs Mughal Associobes Evaluators and Consulting Engineers
a5 ol 24 June 2024,

Chances in falr values are analyred dusing the valustion discussion betvesn the managemant and the valeers. As part of this discussion
the team presants a report that explains tha reason for the fair value movemants.

42. EVENT AFTER THE REFORTING PERIOD

Sutsenuent to the: end of the reporting periad, on 11 July 2025, Board of Directors of te Company has unanimously decided to disposs
of the Campany's majar pordan of plant and madhinery and smand-by equipment of ks spinning segment. This decision was |ater
approved by the members of the Company in the Extraordinary General Mesting held on 11 Awgust 2025 in which Chisf Exeoutive Officer
ond cormn directors were outhorized o corry oul the transactions and perforrn other lormolities, However, ks ovenl hos boen
owsickened & non-adjusling cvent under TAS 10 Tvends Aller the Reporting Period” and bas noll been reoognized in Bese Tinardial
sEAtR AN

43. pISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPANY NOT ENGAGED IN SHARIAH MON-PERMISSIBELE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
A5 ITS CORE ACTIVITIES

Description Note [RUPEES IN Twﬁn}

Financing (long-term and short-term) obtained as per Islamic mode

Laing term fnandng - 161,543
Shwrl Lerim bxarrusdngs 9 1,205,213 B29,868
Intercst or mark-up accrued on any conventional lean or advance

Short terin borrowdiings: o 10z /a3 130, 346
Sharinh-compliant bank deposits and bank balances

Hank balanoss, RERT(Y] 3,309 45, 1y
Rewenue earned from shariah compliant business seqment 23 3,561,528 55591063
Exchange gain earned fram actual currency = net 28 701 -
Profit earned from Shariah-compliant bank deposits and bank balances 28 13 26
Proflt pald on Islamic mode of flnancing P B,5494 o L
Tatal Interest earned on any conventlonal loan or advance 8 2,635 3,206
Sowrce and detalled breakup of ather Incame, Including breakup of ather

or miscellaneaus portions of other Income Inte Sharlah-compllant and

non-compliant incoma

Shariah-compliant

Net eschanes gain B Jm -
Remtal incorma 8 2,801 18,355
Gain on disposal of property plant and eguipment F..} 1,760 553
Profit sarmed from shariab compliant hank deposits / bank balances 2B 13 26
Credit balances written badk 28 68,175 13,617
Non-compliant

Profit earned from non-compliant bank deposits | bank balaroes 28 2,635 3,206

Thero were no lguidity damages or lale payments during the yoesr, Moreover, there were no levestments by the Company. The
redafionship with all sharlah corpliant bamks for the current vear is related to bank acoounts a5 glven in Mote 39.1(h).

1
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44, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
I hese financial statements were autharized for issue on 30 September, 2025 by the Board of [irectors of the Company.
a5, GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stabod.

Aﬁﬁ OMER SAEED MUHAM KASHIF ZAHUR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Gender pay gap statement under Circular No 10 dated 17 April 2024 .

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30-06-2025

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap  : Nil
(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap : Nil

(iif) Any other data : Nil

OMER SAEED
DIRECTOR

30 September 2025

e | .



IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Annual report 2024-25 @

IdealGroup
| FORM - 20 |
THE COMPANIES ACT , 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Cnn‘pany{ IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED |
2.1 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders | 30-06-2025 |
Shareholdings

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
535 1 100 43304
613 101 500 266715
[A 501 1000 85452
85 1001 5000 222033
15 5001 10000 125595
4 10001 15000 48138
1 20001 25000 21174
1 25001 30000 26718
2 40001 45000 81000
1 45001 50000 47599
1 55001 60000 56500
1 60001 65000 601786
1 170001 175000 175000
1 210001 215000 214274
1 225001 230000 227000
1 535001 540000 535726
1 625001 630000 628396
1 880001 885000 883000
1 890001 895000 890726
1 920001 925000 922300
2 930001 935000 1865876
1 965001 970000 968300
1 1540001 1545000 1544998
1,342 9,920,000

| | ———
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Categories of Shareholding
As atJune 30,2025

[ Categories of Shareholding Num bers Shares held|Percentage (%)
ssoclated companies,Undertakings and Related Parties
IT and ICP 3 1,000 0.01
irectors,Chief Execufive & theirs
ouse and Adult Children
hr.Muhammad Sased Shaikh [ Chairman ) 1 5,000 0.05
Mr.Amjad Saeed [Chief Executive) 2 2,080,724 20.98)
Mrs.Rubina Amjad { Direclor ) 2 1,105,000 11.14]
Mr.Umar Saeed { Director ) 2 1,110,000 11.19]
Mr_Khizar Sased { Director ) 2 1,857,300 18.72
Mr.Ahsan Sased [ Director ) 2 1,105,878 11.15
M. Muhammad Azhar (Indepandant Directar) 1 500 0.01
Mr Rizwan-ul-Hassan (Independent Director) 1 100 0.00}
[Execulives
Public Sector Companies and Carporations
[Banks, Development Finance Institutions, 1 369 0.00)
Mon - Banking Finance Institutions,
Uont Stock Companies 5 2,400 0.02
Insurance Companies Modaraba and Mutual Funds 1 628,396 6.33]
[ndividuals 1317 1,961,047 19.77]
[Others 2 62,288 0.53]
[Total 1342 9,920,000 100.00]
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY
Mame of Shareholder No of Sharrs held Percentage |
Amjad Saeed 2,080,724 20.98
Rubina Amjed 1,105,000 11.14
Limar Sased 1,110,000 11.18
Fhizar Saead 1,857,300 18.72
Ahsan Sased 1,105,878 11.15
Kamval Saeed 1,024,800 10.33
CDC-TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT} TRUST B2 108 6.33

Statement showing shares bought and sold by directors, CEQ,CFO,
Company secretary and the minor family members
form 01 July 2024 to 30 June 2025

ls.NO Name Designation Ehares bougﬂ Shares sold
1 Mr.Mohammad Saeed Sheikh Chairman - -
2 Mr.Amjad Saeed Chiel Executive - -
3 Mrs Rubina Amjad Director - -
4 Mr.Omer Saeed Director - -
] Mr.Ehizer Sased Dargctor - -
& Mr.Ahsan Saeed Director - -
7 Mr Muhammad Arhar Independent Director - -
8 Mr.Rizwan-ul-Hassan irldtpunmnt Director - -
) Muhammad Kashif Zahur Chief Financial Officey - -
10 Mr.Muhammad Nadeem Company Secretary | - -

|
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M/S F.D.Registrar Services (SMC-Pwt) Ltd.,
1?«(2!5,1?"1 Floor Saima Trade Tower-A
l1.Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000

Dear Sir

The Share Registrar ldeal Spinning Mills Lid
Requesl for E-Transmission of Annual Reporl

Pursuant to S.R.O.787(1)2014 dated Seplember 08,2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).kindly note requisite information for electronic transmission of annual
balance sheet and profit and loss accounl, auditor's report and directors report ele. ( Audited Financial
Slatements) along with nolice of annual general meeling (Notice) {colleclively referred lo as "Annual
Report’} of ldeal Spinning Mills Lid (ISM).The email address provided hereunder may please be recorded
in the members’ register of the Company being maintained under Seclion 473 of the Companies Act
2017.

Particulars

Mame of shareholder
Folio Mo/ CDC 1D No.
CNIC No.
Passporl No.(for Foreign shareholder
E-mail address
Land line Telephone No.
Cell No.

It is slated that the above-mentioned information is correct and | hereby agree and give my consent for
future transmission of the Company's Annual Report via email address provided above.

Itis further stated thal being the shareholder of Company, it my responsibilily lo communicate any
change in the registered email address in a limely manner.

Yours Truly,

Shareholder's Signalure
Complele Address

Copy lo
The Company Secrelary

Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd

404/05, Business Cenlre, Mumlaz Hasan Road
Karachi

| | ——
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THE MANAGER DATE:
F.D.REGISTRAR SERVICES(SMC-PVT) LTD

OFFICE#.1705, 17TH FLOOR, TRADE TOWER

A-II,CHUNDRIGAR ROAD KARACHI

KARACHI-74000

TEL:92-21-32271905-6

MANDATORY PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

Dear Sir,

| hereby communicate to receive my future dividend directly in my bank account as detailed below

A.  Shareholder's Detail

Mame of Company

Name of shareholder

Folio No. /CDC Participant ID A/fc No.
CNIC No.

Passport No.

(in case of foreign shareholder)
Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

E-mail address of sharehol der

B. Shareholder's Bank Detail

Title of bank account

Bank Account (IBAN 24-DIGITS starting with PK )
Bank Name

Bank's Branch Name

Branch's complete address

Itis stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, that | will intimate the changes in the
above-mentioned information to the above addresses as soon as these occur.

Signature of shareholder

) | O I ———————
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FORM OF PROXY
37" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

IWe Sfo/Dio/\W/io
of beirg a member
of IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED and holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register
Folio No. andfor COC Participant 1D No. and Account / Sub-account
No do hereby appoint Mr./Mrs /Miss

Folio NoJCDC No. of failing him/her
Mr./Mrs./Miss Folio NofCDC No af

as mylour praxy to attend, act and vole for mefus on my/our behalf at Annual General

Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 10.15 a.m at 404 405, 4™ Floor
Business Centre Mumtaz Hassan Road Karachl and at any adjpurnment thereof in the same manner
as l'we myselffiourselves would vote if personally present at such meeting.

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy -
Folio / CDC A/C NO Five Rupass
Revenue Stamp
Signed this day of 2025
WITNESS:
1 Signature —-- 2. Signature —-—-cceemme e -
Name MName
Address Address
CHNIC No CNIC Mo,
or Passport No.——————-— ar Passport No.
Notes:
1. A member enfitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy in writing to attend the
meeting and vote on member's behall.
2. If a member is unable fo attend the meeting. He/She may complete and sign this form and send it

to the Company's Share Registrar M/s. F.D. Registrar Service (PVT) Limited 1705 17" Floor
Saima Trade Tower A, |.l. Chundrigar Road Karachi so as to reach not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for halding the Meeting,

3. For CDC Account Holders [ Corporate Entities, in addiion to the above the following
Requirements have to be met:

(a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers be stated on the form.

(b) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
provided with the proxy form.

@ The proxy shall produce his original CMIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. In
case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

1
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